
Item # 4



 

Considerations for Improving Downtown 
 
Physical improvements to downtown 
 

- Install overhead street lights from Main St. east-west along 2nd St. - COMPLETE 
- Extend overhead “Christmas” lights north along Main St. to 4th St.  - COMPLETE 
- Improvements to sidewalks, paving, gutters, striping, drainage – COMPLETE  

Sealcoat and Re-striping of Main Street completed in December 2022.   
TXDOT TASA grant received.  Main Street ADA-compliant ramps and 1st Street 
sidewalks in process.  Plan set is 85% complete.  Bid process (RFP) for construction 
contractor within next 30-days.   

- Consider replacement of all ornamental street lamps that are 30+ years old with 
new, dark-skies compatible, LED fixtures. NEW 

- City is now maintaining the downtown area sidewalks from 1st to Overlook Park.  
This includes NE/NW blocks along Main street.  City also weed-eats along Loop 230.   

 

Community Events 
 

- Events that help & hurt downtown businesses -  Festival of Lights, Airing of the 
Quilts, Farmer’s Market, Texas Photo Festival are a few of the events that help 
downtown.  Not sure which events hurt downtown businesses as they take visitors 
AWAY from downtown (e.g., Fly-In, Jamboree, 4th of July)??? 

 

Signage 
 

- Eat, shop… signage (TxDot) – No update at this time.  Not sure the exact type of 
signage requested.  Wayfinding signage installed.  Purple Heart signage installed. 

- Hope Float Sign Restoration – Still working on electronic billboard at airport.  
However, need direction from Council whether or not to hire artist to complete 
and/or restore old Hope Floats sign.  “Friends of the Hope Floats Sign” initiated a 
fund-raising campaign.  In addition, this is a cultural district grant project currrently 
under consideration.    

- Hwy 71 directional signage – Please elaborate. 
 
Access to Colorado River 
 

- Main Street park access/activities – Construction and on-going maintenance costs 
remain a concern.  Also, neighbors that live at the end of Main are against having a 
public park.  Brian Wells and Ryan Savage were working on a community park plan.  
This topic will be added to a future comprehensive plan discussion.   

 
Communication & Collaboration 
 

- State film & music industry interface via city – Kelly Holt / Mike Shell 
- Collaboration among downtown businesses – Revamping notification and sign-off 

requirements.  
 

Code Compliance 
 

- Visit/revise/enforce codes governing use of public sidewalks – Hired new code 
enforcement officer!!! 

 



 
 
Facades/Empty Buildings 
 

- Explore ways to improve aesthetics of Main Streetscape – Vacancy tax / Façade 
grants / Main Street Program? 

 
Land Use 

- Promote mixed (residential) uses – Discuss during Comp plan.  Update on Comp plan 
will be part of this month’s CM report.   



Proclamation 

Pastoral Appreciation for Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora W. Holt 

 

WHEREAS, Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora W. Holt is commemorating their 7th 
Pastoral Anniversary as Co-Pastors of Abundant Grace Community Church on Sunday, August 
27th, 2023 the church congregations, family and friends from all over have proudly come together 
to help celebrates the services and sacrifices of God’s servants, and 

WHEREAS, under the direction of the Holy Spirit, Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora 
W. Holt was installed as Pastors of Abundant Grace Community Church in 2016, and throughout 
this time, they have fervently embraced the visions God has given them and continue to provide 
strong leadership needed to help improve and enrich the lives in Smithville and surrounding cities;  
and 

WHEREAS, Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora W. Holt firmly believes that the church 
must be a “Church moving forward,” and serve the community of Smithville through faith, 
unwavering love; and spiritual growth; and 

WHEREAS, we are proud to call them our “Pastors, Leaders, and Friends,” and join 
citizens throughout Smithville, TX and beyond in thanking them for all that they have done over 
the past 7 years, and look forward to their continued spiritual guidance for many years to come.  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Sharon Foerster, Mayor of the City of Smithville hereby honor 
the 7th Pastoral Anniversary of Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora W. Holt, and proclaim 
Sunday, August 27th, 2023 as Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora W. Holt Day within the City 
and urge all the citizens of Smithville to acknowledge the occasion of this day.  

Co-Pastors Ronnie L. Holt & Lenora W. Holt Day 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I 
have hereunto set my hand and 
caused the Seal of the City of 
Smithville to be affixed this 11th 
Day of August 2023. 

 
___________________________ 
 Mayor, Sharon Foerster 

Attest:  
 
_________________________ 
Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary 

 



Item # 5



CITY OF SMITHVILLE 
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

JULY 10, 2023 
 
Present: Mayor Sharon Foerster, Councilmembers Janice Bruno, Tom Etheredge, Jimmy Jenkins, 
Tyrone Washington, Mitchell Jameson, and City Manager Robert Tamble.  
 
Open Meeting:  Call to order:  Mayor Foerster called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Councilman 
Jenkins gave the Invocation and led the Pledge. 
 
Recognition/Awards/Proclamations/Announcements/Presentations:  
 

a) Presentation from Gry Park and Brooke Gillespe on the Refuge Center 
b) Presentation from Dr. Linda Wilson of the Smithville Hospital Authority Board 

Citizen Comments: None 
Approval of the minutes from the June 12, 2023, Council Meeting and Public Hearing, the June 
14, 2023 Council Workshop, and the June 21, 2023 Workshop. Councilman Jenkins made a motion 
to approve the minutes. Councilman Etheredge Seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Hear recommendations from Planning and Zoning on the following: 
 

a. On a variance for zero lot line on front, rear, and side yard setbacks for property ID 
8730020, Mt. Pleasant Addition, Block 36, Lot 4, property owner Dennis Koch, agent 
Andy Oates: P&Z Chairman Brian Riewe said P&Z recommended approving the zero-
lot line variance.   
 

b. On a minor / amending replat combining two lots and an alley into one lot, property ID 
103263 & 19166, Smithville Townsite, Block 12 Lots 7 & 8 and the adjacent alley, 
property owners John and Leigh Killgore, Agent Jon Snyder Construction Group - P&Z 
Chairman Brian Riewe said P&Z recommended approving the re-plat.  
 

c. On a re-plat to combine two lots into one lot, property ID 20778, Smithville Townsite 
Block 88 Lots 6 & 7, 300 San Jacinto Street, Property owners Karl, and Lisa Shackelford, 
Agent James E. Garon and/ or Glenn T. Dial: P&Z Chairman Brian Riewe said P&Z 
recommended approving the re-plat.  

 
Public Hearing: 
 
Hear Citizen's Comments: 
 

a. On a variance for zero lot line on front, rear, and side yard setbacks for property ID 
8730020, Mt. Pleasant Addition, Block 36, Lot 4, property owner Dennis Koch, agent 
Andy Oates: No one signed up to speak for or against this item.  
 



b. On a minor / amending replat combining two lots and an alley into one lot, property ID 
103263 & 19166, Smithville Townsite, Block 12 Lots 7 & 8 and the adjacent alley, 
property owners John and Leigh Killgore, Agent Jon Snyder Construction Group:  No 
one signed up to speak for or against this item.  
 

c. On a re-plat to combine two lots into one lot, property ID 20778, Smithville Townsite 
Block 88 Lots 6 & 7, 300 San Jacinto Street, Property owners Karl and Lisa Shackelford, 
Agent James E. Garon and/or Glenn T. Dial: No one signed up to speak for or against 
this item.  

 
d. On the naming of Callie Street in the M5 Subdivision: No one signed up to speak for or 

against this item.  
Adjourn 

 
Open Meeting: 
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on an Ordinance for a variance for zero-lot line on front, rear, and side yard 
setbacks for property ID 8730020, Mt. Pleasant Addition, Block 36, Lot 4, property owner Dennis 
Koch, agent Andy Oates: The lot has an existing 35-foot easement set-back from the street. The 
additional 25-foot set back within the lot in both the front and rear limit the size of a home to 75-
feet in depth. The planned home is 93-feet, due to a side entry garage creating an "L" shape design, 
which makes the depth much longer than just the main living part of the house. In addition, the 
side yard set-backs are 10-feet for a two-story house on both sides of the lot, limiting the width of 
a house to only 55-feet.  The Koch’s house is roughly this width which allows no room for error 
in the “construction”. The Koch’s feel the 35-foot easement in the front provides a sufficient set-
back considering neighboring blocks do not have this additional easement. Waiving the rear set-
back will allow more flexibility in positioning the home further from the front of the lot.  Also, the 
Koch’s own the lot to the east, and an unbuilt 60-foot road is to the west and vacated alley to the 
rear, so there are no infringements to neighboring owners. The council had a discussion about 
setting the precedents on a zero-lot line. The contractor also mentioned a 4,000 sq ft home which 
would exceed the 40% coverage rule. There was discussion on combining the lots so the coverage 
and setback may not be an issue. Councilman Jenkins said they should go back through P&Z since 
given the options they were presented he made a motion to deny the ordinance and waive the fee 
to go back through to P&Z. Councilman Jameson added to the motion to deny because of item 
three the request does not result in unnecessary hardship. Councilman Washington seconded and 
the motion to deny passed unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on a minor / amending re-plat combining two lots and an alley into one lot, 
property ID 103263 & 19166, Smithville Townsite, Block 12 Lots 7 & 8 and the adjacent alley, 
property owners John and Leigh Killgore, Agent Jon Snyder Construction Group: The re-plat is 
being requested to combine two lots into one.  The eastern alley was previously abandoned by Quit 
Claim deed to Roger and Emily Hewitt on 5/16/2005.  Councilwoman Bruno made a motion to 
approve the re-plat. Councilman Etheredge seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 



Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on a re-plat to combine two lots into one lot, property ID 20778, Smithville 
Townsite Block 88 Lots 6 & 7, 300 San Jacinto Street, Property owners Karl, and Lisa Shackelford, 
Agent James E. Garon and/ or Glenn T. Dial: The re-plat is being requested to combine two lots 
into one. Councilman Jameson made a motion to approve the re-plat. Councilman Etheredge 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on a Resolution authorizing the renaming of the street in the M5 
Subdivision to Callie Street: This resolution will remedy an administrative error regarding the 
naming of Callie Street within the M5 subdivision.  The M5 Final Plat was approved by the City 
Council on 3/14/22.  At the time, the final plat identified street names as Street “A”, “B”, and “C”.  
As the 911 addressing protocols and procedures have evolved over time, the Bastrop County GIS 
department must review and approve all new street names to ensure there are no phonetic conflicts 
within the area related to the 911 system.  The M5 developer chose the name “Callie” street and 
the city notified Bastrop County GIS.  On April 6, 2022, Bastrop County GIS (Julie Sommerfeld) 
sent an email to the City Manager stating there were no conflicts identified in Bastrop County nor 
the Smithville (i.e., 78957) portion of Fayette County with respect to Callie Street.  Councilman 
Jameson made a motion to approve the resolution. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously.  
   
Citizen Comments: None  
Discussion and Action on Sales Tax and Short-Term Rental Administration Agreement with 
Avenu Insights & Analytics: Avenu Insights & Analytics, LLC provides administrative services 
and compliance monitoring for general Sales and Use Tax collection and Hotel Occupancy Tax 
collection associated with Short-Term Rentals.  The Sales and Use Tax compliance review is 
designed to assist the City of Smithville in enhancing its sales and use tax revenues by detecting, 
documenting, and correcting sales tax errors thereby producing previously unrealized revenue.  
The cost for this service is based on a thirty percent (30%) contingency fee. The fee applies to the 
sales/use tax revenue received by the city from correction of taxpayer reporting errors detected 
and documented by the Sales Tax Compliance Review.  The Short-Term Rental Monitoring, 
Identification, and Compliance Services are designed to help the city enhance its short-term 
rental/lodging tax revenues by providing targeted web monitoring, web portal and identification 
services thereby producing previously unrealized revenue and improved compliance opportunities.  
The cost of the Short-Term Rental Monitoring, Identification, and Compliance Services includes 
a one-time setup fee of two thousand dollars ($2,000) and an annual fixed fee of two hundred fifty-
five dollars ($255) per property / per year (up to 60 properties) or an annual Administration fee of 
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000), whichever is greater. Fees will be calculated based on the total 
number of known, registered and active listing properties at the beginning of each contract year 
and 1/12th of the total Fees calculated are invoiced and due at the beginning of each month.  The 
initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years following the Effective Date, 
and automatically renew for two (2) successive one (1) year terms.  Preliminary analysis indicates 
that there are 43 properties registered on various short-term rental websites in Smithville with the 
average nightly rental rate of $204.71.  The estimated unrealized annual STR tax revenue (at 50-
75% occupancy range) is between $104-154k. Councilwoman Bruno made a motion to approve 
the contract. Councilman Jenkins seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   



Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on a Resolution supporting Ascension Seton Hospital and Smithville 
Hospital Authority Board: Councilmember Etheredge read the resolution. Councilwoman Bruno 
made a motion to approve the resolution. Councilman Etheredge seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on awarding a contract for miscellaneous concrete work in Smithville: The 
City of Smithville published a Request for Proposal (RFP) in the Austin American Statesman on 
June 7, 2023 and  June 14, 2023 for a general contractor qualified to build transformer pads, 
sidewalks, curbs, clear drainage conveyances, and complete small drainage improvement projects 
(e.g., valley gutters, box culverts, concrete conveyances, etc.) within the incorporated city limits 
of Smithville, TX. The City received three (3) sealed proposals that were reviewed by City staff 
on Wednesday, June 21, 2023.  The qualified contractor must furnish their own equipment, utilize 
best-known practices for concrete forming / finishing, and carry $1M in general liability insurance 
naming the City of Smithville as a certificate holder.  Experience, work performance, capacity to 
perform, and cost were criteria used by the City staff to evaluate / differentiate each contractor's 
qualifications.  RES Construction66, LLC was the lowest bidder that received the highest score 
with 94.33 points.  As such, RES Construction66, LLC (Red Rock, TX) is the contractor that the 
evaluation team recommends to the City Council for awarding the 2-year contract (which includes 
an option for a discretionary 1-year extension).  Councilman Jenkins made a motion to award RES 
Construction66, LLC the contract. Councilman Washington seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously.  
        
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on awarding a contract for mowing various city-owned properties: The City 
of Smithville published a Request for Proposal (RFP) in the Austin American Statesman on June 
7, 2023 and June 14, 2023 for mowing various city-owned properties.  The qualified contractor 
will be required to mow and maintain property to the satisfaction of the City. Grass shall not be 
allowed to exceed a height of 8 inches. Contractor shall also be responsible for trimming walks, 
flowerbeds, around trees and shrubs, and keeping the inside and outside of any fence lines clear of 
weeds and grass. Contractor will be responsible for providing all materials, supplies, and 
equipment necessary to complete the task(s) above and carry a $1M general liability insurance 
policy.  Experience, work performance, capacity to perform, and cost were the criteria to be used 
to evaluate / differentiate each contractor's qualifications.  However, only one (1) contractor, Mr. 
John Thompson, (who resides at 409 McSweeney in Smithville) submitted a bid.  As the sole 
bidder, Mr. John Thompson is the contractor recommended to the City Council for awarding the 
2-year mowing contract (which includes an option for a discretionary 1-year extension). As a 
minimum, Contractor shall mow city-owned properties twice per month. Councilman Etheredge 
made a motion to award John Thompson the contract. Councilman Jenkins seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously.  
  
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on Approval of the Cultural District Public Art Project Form:  If approved, 
local artists will use the form to identify / submit projects for funding consideration under the 



City’s Cultural District program. Councilman Jameson made a motion to approve the form. 
Councilman Jenkins seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on the Certification of Additional Sales and Use Tax to Pay Debt Services:  
The Texas Comptroller requires the Governing body to certify that the amount of additional sales 
and use tax revenue collected to pay debt service has been deducted from the total amount 
described by Tax Code Section 26.05(e-1), 26.04(e)(3)(C) and 26.05(a)(1). Councilman Etheredge 
made a motion to approve the Certificate. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on entering into a contract with Singleton, Clark & Company, PC for the 
2022/2023 Fiscal Year Audit: Approval of this agenda item will allow the City to utilize Singleton, 
Clark & Company for our annual audit services. The estimated audit fee for FY22/23 is $29,200 
(Financial Statement Audit $24,200 and Single Audit $5,000).  This represents a 10% increase 
over last fiscal year’s base rate of $22,000 plus an additional $5,000 for the single audit. 
Councilman Etheredge made a motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Singleton Clark & Company, PC and pay $29,200 for said services. Councilman Washington 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on the approval of the Financial Report: Councilman Washington made a 
motion to approve the financial report. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
Adjourn 8:07 p.m. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Sharon Foerster, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary 



Item # 6



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion 
August 14, 2023

ELECTRIC BILLS  



Electric
Water
Sewer
Garbage
Water/WWTF Imp
Volunteer Fire Dept
Security Light
C of O Payback
Taxes/Other 
Services

UTILITY 
BILL

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion 
August 14, 2023

• Citizens expressed frustration / concern about high electric 
bills in JULY on multiple social media outlets.

• Utility Bill vs Electric Bill

• Current LCRA Bill / Prior 
Month Consumption = 
Next Month F&PCRF

CURRENT SITUATION:

$0.05 / kWh
Distribution Fee

100o • Increase PCRF Cost / TIMING!
• 34 Days in Billing Cycle – Manual Reads
• Increased Demand and Consumption
• 35+ Consecutive Days of 100oF or Greater Temps
• 3X to 5X Increase in Residential and Commercial Usage

WHAT HAPPENED & WHY:

HOW IS COST / kWh CALCULATED:
$COST / kWh+ = ELECTRIC BILL



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion 
August 14, 2023

• Wholesale Power Agreement w/ LCRA.
• 30-year Contract Expires 2041.
• COS – Utilizes Variable Billing Model:

BACKGROUND:

-  Generation Fee
-  Transmission Fee
-  Admin / Service Fees (e.g., Uri)
-  Distribution Fee* ($0.05 / kWh) 

*Distribution Fee helps pay for the 
materials, supplies, equipment, and 
personnel required to maintain the 
47 miles of utility lines in Smithville. 

Set by Smithville Council

{
V
A
R
I
A
B
L
E F I X E D 

COS Consumption / Use:
42,000 Megawatts / Year

F
&
P
C
R
F



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion 
August 14, 2023

FUEL COST CALCULATIONS:

$276,605.43 / 2,467,983 kWh = $0.11207 / kWh + $0.050 = $0.16207 / kWh

JUNE = CURRENT BILL (MAY) / PRIOR MONTH CONSUMPTION* (APRIL) + DIST. FEE = JUNE kWh RATE
$237,466.78 / 2,729,053 kWh = $0.08701 / kWh + $0.050 = $0.13701 / kWh

$329,170.30 / 5,025,005 kWh = $0.06551 / kWh + $0.050 = $0.11551 / kWh

JULY = CURRENT BILL (JUNE) / PRIOR MONTH CONSUMPTION (MAY) + DIST. FEE = JULY kWh RATE

AUG = CURRENT BILL (JULY) / PRIOR MONTH CONSUMPTION (JUNE) + DIST. FEE = AUG kWh RATE

CONSUMPTION INCLUDES:
• Residential Customers – 1950 
• Commercial Customers – 302 
• Public Lighting – (Unmetered)
• Public Buildings - 53
• Line Loss – 7%

CITY HALL

REC CENTER POLICE

LIBRARY
*



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

OUTLOOK FOR AUGUST:
• 29% REDUCTION 

in cost / kWh

Applies to customers billed 
34-days in June/July.

(June 8 to July 12)

• 27-Days in 
Billing Cycle

$0.1155 / kWh

$0.1621 / kWh 100o34-Days

27-Days*

• Continued 
Heat Wave

*Next Billing Cycle is July 13 to August 8th



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion 
August 14, 2023

SUMMARY:

RECOMMENDATIONS / OPTIONS:

• Seasonal demand has increased consumption.
• # of Days in July billing cycle and PCRF 

calculation methodology exacerbated situation.  
• Expect significantly lower cost / kWh for August.
• Implement energy conservations guidelines.
• Average cost / kWh for residential electric 

service in Smithville is 12-13 cents.

• Continue calculating PCRF using Variable kWh Rate.
• Evaluate Fixed Billing Model (Flat kWh Rate)

100o



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

Questions???



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

BACK-UP



Understanding Your Utility Bill:

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

• Customers Only Pay for What They Use
• Payments are Due by the 10th of the Month
• Pay on-time to Avoid Penalty and/or            

Disruption of Service:
- 10% Penalty on Total Bill for Late Payments
- Service Disconnect after 30 Days Late
- Reconnect Fee - $50 (during normal business hours)
- Reconnect Fee - $100 (after-hours, weekends, or Holidays)

• Payment arrangements can be made due to 
adverse circumstance but you must contact              
the City and honor commitment.

• St. Vincent de Paul, Combined Community 
Action (CCA) and local Churches offer              
financial assistance.



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

Texzas Utility Help
TexasUtilityHelp.com

855-566-2057

Ministerial Alliance 
(First Baptist Church)

512-237-2176

Advocacy Outreach
512-281-4180

Combined Community Action (CCA)
Application at City Hall

www.ccaction.com
800-688-9065

St. Vincent DePaul
512-718-2614

Salvation Army
512-409-3474

City of Smithville Utility Assistance



City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

ARTICLE 13.07 – ELECTRIC SERVICE

City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion 
August 14, 2023

https://ecode360.com/39658045


City of Smithville Electric Rate Discussion

THANK YOU!

City of Smithville Website  https://www.ci.smithville.tx.us/
Link to Current Utility Rates  https://www.ci.smithville.tx.us/city-departments/utilities/rates/ 

https://www.ci.smithville.tx.us/
https://www.ci.smithville.tx.us/city-departments/utilities/rates/


Item # 7















Item # 12



Qty Description Unit Cost Total Actual
1 Micellaneous Equipment $85,000 $85,000
4 Patrol Vehicles $65,000 $260,000
1 New HVAC $20,000 $20,000
1 Animal Control Vehicle $55,000 $55,000

13 Mobile CAD Units for Patrol Cars $6,250 $81,250
$501,250 $0

Qty Description Unit Cost Total Actual
1 Chipper Truck $85,000 $85,000
1 Sewer Pump Truck $200,000 $200,000
1 Small Bucket Truck $190,000 $190,000
2 Utility Trucks (F-250) $80,000 $160,000
1 Tractor w/ Shredder $40,000 $40,000
1 Warehouse Roof Repair $100,000 $100,000
1 Rack Storage System (Warehouse) $25,000 $25,000
1 Miscellaneous Tools / Equip. $100,000 $100,000
1 Streets/Drainage/Sidewalks/Curbs $100,000 $100,000

$1,000,000 $0

Qty Description Unit Cost Total Actual
1 Airport Lighting System $150,000 $150,000
1 Downtown Lighting Upgrade $500,000 $500,000
1 Tanker Truck $275,000 $275,000 Fire Tanker for SVFD
1 Playground Equipment $200,000 $200,000
1 Misc. City Facility Upgrades $100,000 $100,000
1 Grant Match for Infrastructure $275,000 $275,000

$1,500,000 $0

Grand Total $3,001,250

Truck needed to pump clogged sewer lines and/or lift stations 

City of Smithville $3M Series 2023 Tax Note
Police Department

Comments
Weapons, Ammunition, Tasers, Office Equipment, Computers, etc.
Two (2) fully outfitted vehicles + two (2) offline vehicles
Replace / repair HVAC to improve efficiency and reduce cost
Replace old vehicle with new holding pins for animals
Mobile access to BADGE system and other LE databases.

Public Works / Utilities 
Comments

Replace older chipper truck

Use for tree trimming and cleaning alleys + back-up when needed

Additional tractor to mow at Airport and Riverbend Park 
New roof w/ spray insullation to repair leaks help with heating / cooling
Rack storage system will provide additional space in warehouse
Mowers, Weed-eaters, Chainsaws, Tools, Tire Balancer, Industrial Vacuum

Public restroom remodel. Security doors @ City Hall.  Video surveillance.  
GLO Drainage ($130k) / TXDOT Main Street ADA Ramps & Sidewalks ($145k)

Replace older trucks in current fleet

General
Comments

Upgrade runway lighting system.  Est. cost = $1.5M w/ 10% Grant Match.  
Upgrade ornamental lighting with Dark-skies compatible LED lighting

Playground equipment for City Parks w/ weatherproof padding

Road repair / paving. Sidewalks, curbs, and gutters.  Small drainage projects.



(210) 832-9760 (San Antonio) (210) 832-9760 (San Antonio) (210) 832-9760 (San Antonio)
MEMBER: FINRA/SIPC (214) 765-1439 (Dallas) MEMBER: FINRA/SIPC (214) 765-1439 (Dallas) MEMBER: FINRA/SIPC
www.samcocapital.com mmcliney@samcocapital.com www.samcocapital.com afriedman@samcocapital.com www.samcocapital.com rcunningham@samcocapital.com

SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
Ryan Cunningham

MANAGING DIRECTOR
Mark M. McLiney Andrew T. Friedman

SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTOR

CITY OF SMITHVILLE, TEXAS
DISCUSSION ON ISSUANCE OF TAX NOTES
August 14, 2023



2

Tax Rate Impact of the Notes

Tax 
Year

Taxable 
Assessed Value

TAV 
Growth %

M&O 
Rate

I&S 
Rate

Total 
Tax Rate

2022 $394,511,444 20.54% $0.3831 $0.1658 $0.5489

2023* $455,019,894 15.34% $0.3765 $0.1724 $0.5489
____________
*  Represents the Certified Values and proposed but not yet adopted 
tax rates.

Due to changes in property tax law imposed by Senate Bill 2 passed into law during the 
2021 legislative session, the City’s M&O tax rate may not increase by an amount greater 
than 3.5% of the prior year’s levy, generally, without seeking authorization from the 
voters to do so.

Since taxable values are growing at an annual rate in excess of 3.5%, the City’s M&O tax 
rate is being compressed (forced lower) and the City can support new debt for capital 
projects while maintaining the same total tax rate year-over-year.



3

Method of Sale

The City has typically sold its short-term tax notes via competitive private placement to 
a local, regional or national bank in order to achieve the lowest borrowing rate.
Historically, banks have been able to provide competitive interest rates compared to 
rates of publicly sold tax-exempt debt offerings while allowing the City to avoid costs of 
issuance which drive the effective borrowing rate higher (i.e. Bond Rating fee, 
Document preparation and printing fees, and underwriting costs).

At this time, banks’ costs of funds is higher (~5.25% depending upon the bank) and 
almost all banks have stopped buying tax-exempt debt because they have so much low 
yielding debt purchased over the last several years which they must now hold to 
maturity or realize a steep loss if traded.  The few banks that remain active to purchase 
private placements are requiring higher interest rates than the City can expect under a 
public sale method even after paying higher costs of issuance.

SAMCO is recommending a public offering of the Tax Notes in order to achieve the 
lowest possible interest rate.



4

Tax Rate Impact Analysis

Smithville, City of
Tax Rate Impact Analysis: $3,000,000 Tax Notes

August 11, 2023

Tax Rate Impact

2023 394,511,444$             747,038$          87,000$            660,038$          0.1658$          0.3831$          0.5489$          
2024 445,962,142               642,338            87,000              222,900$          778,238            0.1720             0.3765             0.5486             
2025 490,558,356               355,110            -                          502,900            858,010            0.1726             0.3763             0.5490             
2026 507,727,899               356,416            -                          521,400            877,816            0.1729             0.3763             0.5492             
2027 525,498,375               352,642            -                          558,100            910,742            0.1733             0.3763             0.5496             
2028 543,890,818               353,716            -                          558,300            912,016            0.1677             0.3763             0.5440             
2029 562,926,997               245,368            -                          562,600            807,968            0.1435             0.3763             0.5198             
2030 582,629,442               55,825              -                          561,000            616,825            0.1059             0.3763             0.4822             
2031 582,629,442               59,250              -                          -                          59,250              0.0102             0.3763             0.3865             
2032 582,629,442               52,675              -                          -                          52,675              0.0090             0.3763             0.3854             
2033 582,629,442               55,963              -                          -                          55,963              0.0096             0.3763             0.3859             
2034 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2035 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2036 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2037 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2038 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2039 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2040 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2041 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2042 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
2043 582,629,442               -                          -                          -                          -                          -               0.3763             0.3763             
Total 3,276,341$      174,000$          3,487,200$      6,589,541$      

(2)   Preliminary, subject to change.  Interest calculated at an assumed rate of 4.06% for illustrative purposes only.
(3)   Assumes the adoption of the Voter Approval M&O Rate.

FYE 
(9/30)

(1)     2023 Certified Values from Bastrop CAD.  Assumes annual growth rate 10% for 1 year, 3.5% for 5 years and 0% thereafter.

$3MM Tax 
Notes, Series 

2023 (2)
I&S Tax Rate 

Required M&O Rate (3) Total Tax Rate

Taxable Assessed 
Valuation (1) Existing Debt

Utility/ 
Drainage 

Improvement 
Fees

New Net Total 
Debt Service



5

Timetable of Events

Date Event

August 14th Council to consider plan of finance and 
‘greenlight’ staff and consultants to proceed 
with plan of issuance

Week of August 
28th

Rating Conference Call with S&P Global 
Ratings

August 30th Post Notice of Sale and Preliminary Official 
Statement

September 11th • Bids Due at 11AM;
• Council to consider authorization of 

Ordinance approving the sale of Notes to 
the winning bidder.

October 11th Closing; Funds delivered to the City’s 
Depository Bank



 

 

 
 
 
 

$3,000,000* 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, TEXAS (THE “CITY”) 
TAX NOTES, SERIES 2023 (THE “NOTES”) 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

September OctoberAugust

 
 

Wednesday, August 9, 2023 SAMCO send the Request for Information (“RFI) to the City 
  
Monday, August 14, 2023 SAMCO presents plan of finance to the City Council for authorization to proceed 

with the financing 
 

Wednesday, August 16, 2023 The City returns RFI to SAMCO 
 

Thursday, August 17, 2023 1st Draft of NOS/POS sent to Bond Counsel for review and comments 
 

Monday, August 21, 2023 1st Draft comments due to SAMCO from Bond Counsel 
 

Wednesday, August 23, 2023 2nd Draft of NOS/POS sent to City, Bond Counsel, Rating Agency and Bond Insurers 
 

Week of August 28, 2023 Rating Conference Call 
 

Monday, August 28, 2023 2nd Draft (FINAL) comments due to SAMCO from City, Bond Counsel, Rating Agency 
and Bond Insurers 
 

Wednesday, August 30, 2023 Post NOS/POS to SAMCO website and electronically distribute to potential Bidders 
 

September 5th -6, 2023 Receive Rating 
 

Monday, September 11, 2023 • Bids on the Notes due at 12:00 P.M. (Noon), Central Time, from potential 
purchasers 

 
• City Council adopts ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Notes at 6:00 

P.M., Central Time 
 

Monday, September 18, 2023 Print and distribute and post Final Official Statement (OS) 
  
Wednesday, October 4, 2023 SAMCO notifies all parties of closing/delivery instructions 

 
Wednesday, October 11, 2023 Payment for delivery of the Notes.  Funds wires to City’s depository bank 

 
__________________________ 
*Preliminary; subject to change. 



Item # 13



BASTROP COUNTY AND CITY OF SMITHVILLE 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT TO SUPPORT 
9-1-1 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM DATABASE MANAGEMENT

911 Database ILA_County-CityofSmithville_2023.docx Page 1 of 6 

This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) is between Bastrop County, a political subdivision 
of the State of Texas (“COUNTY”) and the City of Smithville, general law municipality and political 
subdivision of the State of Texas (“PUBLIC AGENCY”). The COUNTY and PUBLIC AGENCY may be referred 
to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”  

Whereas, the COUNTY has entered into an Interlocal Agreement for 9-1-1 Geographic Information 
System Database Management with the Capital Area Council of Governments (“CAPCOG ILA”) to 
support the Strategic Plan of the Capital Area Emergency Communications District (“CAECD” or 
“District”). 

CAPCOG desires to ensure the highest quality in its 9-1-1 Geographic Information System (GIS) data in 
order to ensure the success of the region’s transition to Next Generation 9-1-1 emergency 
communications service within the District; and 

Whereas, in the CAPCOG ILA, the COUNTY agreed to perform several duties including entering into and 
maintaining agreements with all other local governments who have the authority to assign address 
points, street names and address ranges, alter public safety answering point boundaries, alter 
emergency service boundaries or alter city limit boundaries; and  

Whereas, the Parties enter into this Agreement pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 
of the Government Code so PUBLIC AGENCY is authorized to provide address assignments, street names 
and address ranges, public safety answering point boundaries, emergency service boundaries and city 
limit boundaries to the COUNTY in a timely manner to help ensure efficient and accurate response to 
emergency calls and text messages county-wide. 

Now Therefore, in consideration of the obligations described in this Agreement, and the benefits 
accrued to the citizens of the COUNTY and PUBLIC AGENCY, the Parties do agree as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose 
The purpose of this Agreement is to ensure the exchange of data and information between the Parties 
in a timely manner for the maintenance of the District’s 9-1-1 GIS database to help ensure efficient and 
accurate response to emergency calls and text messages in PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within the 
COUNTY’s provisioning boundary.   

Section 2. Agreement Term 
This Agreement becomes effective on the date last signed by the Parties and ends on September 30, 
2024.  This Agreement automatically extends for two (2) 12-month extension periods unless either party 
terminates this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  The initial term or each 
extension term may be referred to “Term” under this Agreement. 



911 Database ILA_County-CityofSmithville_2023.docx  Page 2 of 6 

Section 3. PUBLIC AGENCY Cost 
PUBLIC AGENCY is responsible for any and all costs incurred to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement. The COUNTY will not be responsible for this cost.  
 
Section 4. Project Representatives 
4.1 Each Party’s Project Representative is authorized to give and receive communications and 
directions on behalf of their Party.  All communications must be addressed to the Party’s Project 
Representative or their designee.  Each Party’s Project Representative may indicate a designee through 
email to the other Party’s Project Representative.  The contact information of the Party’s Project 
Representative is as follows: 
 

COUNTY 
Julie Sommerfeld, GIS Manager 
804 Pecan Street, Bastrop TX 78602 
512-581-4012 
julie.sommerfeld@co.bastrop.tx.us 

PUBLIC AGENCY 
Robert Tamble, City Manager  
317 Main St, Smithville, TX 78957  
512-237-3282, extension 2169  
citymanager@ci.smithville.tx.us  

   
4.2 Should the identity of the Party’s Project Representative change, each Party will identify a 
qualified and competent replacement and promptly notify the other Party of the change.  No formal 
amendment is otherwise required for this section. 
 
Section 5. COUNTY Duties 
The COUNTY agrees to carry out duties shown in Exhibit A. 
 
Section 6. PUBLIC AGENCY Duties 
PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to carry out the duties shown Exhibit B. 
 
Section 7. Confidential and Proprietary Information 
All material submitted to the COUNTY becomes public property and is subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt, unless the disclosure is expressly prohibited by law. If PUBLIC AGENCY 
does not desire proprietary information to be disclosed, each page must be identified and marked 
proprietary at time of submittal. The COUNTY will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect 
such information from disclosure. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however, 
lies with the Texas Attorney General. If PUBLIC AGENCY fails to identify proprietary information, it 
agrees that by submission of the information that the material shall be deemed nonproprietary and 
available upon public request.  
 
Section 8. County Right to Audit 
PUBLIC AGENCY agrees representatives of the COUNTY shall have access to, and the right to audit, 
examine or reproduce, any and all documents of PUBLIC AGENCY related to PUBLIC AGENCY’s 
performance under this Agreement upon COUNTY’s advance written notice to PUBLIC AGENCY and 
scheduling between the Parties. In no event will the COUNTY have the right to inspect records PUBLIC 
AGENCY deems confidential or proprietary. Audits shall be at the COUNTY’s expense. 
 



 

911 Database ILA_County-CityofSmithville_2023.docx  Page 3 of 6 

Section 9. PUBLIC AGENCY Right to Audit 
COUNTY agrees representatives of PUBLIC AGENCY shall have access to, and the right to audit, examine 
or reproduce, any and all documents of the COUNTY’s performance under this Agreement upon PUBLIC 
AGENCY’s advance written notice to COUNTY and scheduling between the Parties. In no event will 
PUBLIC AGENCY have the right to inspect records the COUNTY deems are confidential or proprietary. 
Audits shall be at PUBLIC AGENCY’s expense. 
 
Section 10. Independent Contractor 
This Agreement shall not be construed as creating an employer/employee relationship, a partnership, 
joint enterprise, or a joint venture between the parties. COUNTY and PUBLIC AGENCY are independent 
contractors. The Parties agree and understand that this Agreement does not grant unto the other Party 
any rights or privileges established for employees of either the COUNTY or PUBLIC AGENCY.  
 
Section 11. Default 
A Party to this Agreement shall be in default ("Event of Default") under this Agreement if the Party (a) 
fails to fully, timely and faithfully perform any of its material obligations under this Agreement; or (b) 
fails to provide adequate assurance of performance under Section 12.  
 
Section 12. Right to Assurance 
Whenever a Party to this Agreement in good faith has reason to question the other Party's intent to 
perform, demand may be made to the other Party for written assurance of the intent to perform. In the 
event that no assurance is given within ten working days after demand is made, the demanding Party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the Agreement.  
 
Section 13. Termination for Cause 
If either Party commits an Event of Default, the non-defaulting Party shall deliver written notice of such 
Event of Default to the defaulting Party. Such notice must specify the nature of the Event of Default and 
inform the defaulting Party that unless the Event of Default is cured within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
the notice, additional steps may be taken to terminate this Agreement. If the defaulting Party begins a 
good faith attempt to cure the Event of Default within thirty (30) days, then and in that instance, the 
thirty (30) day period may be extended by the non-defaulting Party, so long as the defaulting Party 
continues to prosecute a cure diligently to completion and continues to make a good faith attempt to 
cure the Event of Default. If, in the opinion of the non-defaulting party, the defaulting Party does not 
cure the breach within thirty (30) days or otherwise fails to make any diligent attempt to correct the 
Event of Default, the defaulting party shall be deemed to be in default and the non-defaulting Party may 
terminate this Agreement. The Parties' rights and remedies under the Agreement are cumulative and 
are not exclusive of any other right or remedy provided by law.  
 
Section 14. Termination without Cause 
Either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing thirty (30) days advance written 
notice to the other party. 
 
Section 15. Dispute Resolution 
15.1 If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the parties agree to 



 

911 Database ILA_County-CityofSmithville_2023.docx  Page 4 of 6 

negotiate prior to prosecuting a suit for damages. However, this section does not prohibit the filing of a 
lawsuit to toll the running of a statute of limitations or to seek injunctive relief. Either Party may make a 
written request for a meeting between representatives of each party within fourteen (14) calendar days 
after receipt of the request or such later period as agreed by the parties. Each Party shall include, at a 
minimum, one (1) senior level individual with decision-making authority regarding the dispute. The 
purpose of this and any subsequent meeting is to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the 
dispute. If, within thirty (30) calendar days after such meeting, the Parties have not succeeded in 
negotiating a resolution of the dispute, they will proceed directly to mediation as described below.  
 
15.2 Negotiation may be waived by a written agreement signed by both Parties, in which event the 
Parties may proceed directly to mediation as described below. If the efforts to resolve the dispute 
through negotiation fail, or the parties waive the negotiation process, the parties may select, within 
thirty (30) calendar days, a mediator trained in mediation skills to assist with resolution of the dispute. 
Should they choose this option, the COUNTY and PUBLIC AGENCY agree to act in good faith in the 
selection of the mediator and to give consideration to qualified individuals nominated to act as 
mediator. Nothing in the said agreement prevents the parties from relying on the skills of a person who 
is trained in the subject matter of the dispute or an agreement interpretation expert. The Parties agree 
to participate in mediation in good faith for up to thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the first 
mediation session. The COUNTY and PUBLIC AGENCY will share the costs of mediation equally.  
 
Section 16. Survival of Obligations 
All provisions of this Agreement that impose continuing obligations on the parties, including but not 
limited agreement purpose, and confidentiality shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement.  
 
Section 17. Texas Public Information Act 
The Parties agree that this Agreement is subject to the Texas Public Information Act and the Act shall 
control to the extent of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the Act. 
 
Section 18. Current Revenues 
This Agreement is authorized by the Interlocal Cooperation Act of Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 
Code. This Agreement does not require payments from one party to the other. However, to the extent 
applicable, each party's monetary obligations hereunder are payable only and solely from the current 
revenues appropriated and available for the performance of such obligations.  
 
Section 19. Assignment 
A Party to this Agreement may not assign or transfer its interests under this Agreement. 
 
Section 20. Entirety of the Agreement 
This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement and understanding between the Parties and 
supersedes all previous agreements, understandings, discussions, or representations concerning its 
subject matter. This Agreement may not be amended in whole or in part except in a written amendment 
executed by both Parties to this Agreement. 
 



 

911 Database ILA_County-CityofSmithville_2023.docx  Page 5 of 6 

Section 21. Jurisdiction and Venue 
The Parties agree that this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and that venue for a 
dispute arising from this Agreement shall be either in Bastrop County, Texas or in the United States 
District Court, Western District of Texas, Austin, Texas.  
 
Section 22. Severability 
If a term or provision of this Agreement is determined to be void or unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement remains effective to the extent permitted by 
law.  
 
Section 23. Notice to Parties 
23.1 Notice to be effective under this Agreement must be in writing and received by the Party against 
whom it is to operate. Notice is received by a party: A) when it is delivered to the Party personally; B) on 
the date shown on the return receipt if mailed registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and 
signed for on behalf of the Party; or C) three business days after its deposit in the United States mail, 
with first-class postage affixed.  Notices to Party’s shall be addresses as follows: 
 

COUNTY 
County Judge 
Bastrop County 
804 Pecan Street 
Bastrop TX 78602 
512-332-7201 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY 
City Manager 
City of Smithville 
P.O. Box 449 
Smithville, TX 78957 
512-237-3282, extension 2169 

23.2 A Party may change its address by providing notice of the change in accordance with Section 23.1. 
 
Section 24. Governmental Immunity 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense available at 
law or equity to either of the Parties nor to create any legal rights or claims on behalf of any third party. 
Neither the COUNTY nor PUBLIC AGENCY waives, modifies, or alters to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas.  
 
Section 25. Execution of this Agreement 
Parties to this Agreement shall submit certified documentation of approval by the governing body 
authorized to execute this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed (by original or facsimile) by the 
Parties in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be considered one and the same agreement. 
 
Section 26. Force Majeure 
Neither Party shall be liable for any default or delay in the performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement if, while and to the extent such default or delay is caused by acts of God, unusual weather 
conditions, fire, riots, sabotage, acts of domestic or foreign terrorism, or any other cause beyond the 
reasonable control of such Party ("Force Majeure"). Force Majeure does not include economic or market 
conditions, which affect a party's cost, but not its ability to perform. The Party invoking Force Majeure 
shall give prompt, timely and adequate notice to the other Party, by facsimile transmission or telephone 



 

911 Database ILA_County-CityofSmithville_2023.docx  Page 6 of 6 

confirmed promptly thereafter in writing, and shall use due diligence to remedy the event of Force 
Majeure, as soon as reasonably possible. In the event of default or delay in Agreement performance due 
to any of the foregoing causes, then the time for completion of the services will be extended by a 
mutually agreeable period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such failure to 
perform. 
 
Section 27. Exhibits 
27.1 The following documents are incorporated into and made part of this Agreement: 
 

Exhibit A COUNTY DUTIES 
Exhibit B PUBLIC AGENCY DUTIES 
Exhibit C CAPCOG ILA 
Exhibit D USPS PUBLICATION 28 APPENDIX C 
Exhibit E ACRONYMS AND DEFINITIONS 
 

27.2 Upon Exhibit C being amended; supplemented; otherwise modified; superseded; or a new 
CAPCOG ILA is executed, the COUNTY will promptly provide the PUBLIC AGENCY’s Project 
Representative with a copy.  No formal amendment to this Agreement is otherwise required. 
  
Section 28. Agreement and Signatures 
Each individual signing this Agreement on behalf of a Party warrants that he or she is legally authorized 
to do so and that the party is legally authorized to perform the obligations undertaken. 
 
This Agreement states the entire agreement of the Parties, and an amendment to it is not effective 
unless in writing and signed by all Parties. 
 
This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals. The Agreement is effective on the last date signed by 
the Parties. 
 
BASTROP COUNTY 
 
By:   
 Gregory Klaus 

County Judge 
 
Date:   

CITY OF SMITHVILLE 
 
By:   
 Robert Tamble 
 City Manager 
 
Date:   

 
 
Attest: 
 
By:   
 Krista Bartsch, County Clerk 

By:   
 Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary

 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit A-County Duties_2023.docx Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit A 

COUNTY DUTIES 

Scope of Work Overview 
The goal of the COUNTY’s scope of work is to facilitate the exchange of information between itself and 
the PUBLIC AGENCY to help ensure the efficient and accurate response to emergency calls and text 
messages in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within the COUNTY’s provisioning boundary.  Such work 
helps support the Capital Area Emergency Communications District’s (“CAECD’s” or “District’s”) Strategic 
Plan in accordance with the CAPCOG ILA, as shown in Exhibit C of this Agreement.  County task’s include:  

Section 1. Tasks 

COUNTY agrees to the following tasks in PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within the COUNTY’s provisioning 
boundary: 

1. Street Names
In regards to proposed street names COUNTY agrees to:
1.1 Review to identify duplicated and sound-alike names;
2.1 Provide written determination to PUBLIC AGENCY of its findings within 20 business days

following receipt of proposed names; and 
3.1 Place in reserved status for a period of 2 years proposed names approved by PUBLIC AGENCY 

and determined by COUNTY to be unique, including phonetically.

2. 9-1-1 GIS Database Management 
In regards to the maintenance of the 9-1-1 GIS database COUNTY agrees to:
1.2 Carry out the scope of work in accordance with the CAPCOG ILA, as outlined in Exhibit C of this 

Agreement. 
2.2 Include in it’s monthly updates to CAPCOG any valid 9-1-1 related information or data (refer to

Exhibit B of this Agreement) received from the PUBLIC AGENCY by the 10th business day of the 
month.  

3. GIS Data
In regards to GIS data, COUNTY agrees to provide a copy upon written request by the PUBLIC
AGENCY to the extent allowed by laws, rules, regulations and agreements.

4. 9-1-1 Data
In regards to 9-1-1 data, COUNTY agrees to provide information upon written request by the PUBLIC
AGENCY to the extent allowed by laws, rules, regulations and agreements.



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 1 of 7 

Exhibit B 

Public Agency Duties 
  
 

Scope of Work Overview 

The intent of this scope of work is to facilitate the exchange of information between the COUNTY and 
the PUBLIC AGENCY to help ensure that efficient and accurate response to emergency calls and text 
messages in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within the COUNTY’s provisioning boundary.  Such work is 
in accordance with the CAPCOG ILA, shown in Exhibit C of this Agreement, which supports the Capital 
Area Emergency Communications District’s (“CAECD’s” or “District’s”) Strategic Plan.  In order to 
accomplish this: 
 

1. Calls and texts must be routed to the correct public safety answering point (PSAP); 
2. The correct emergency service provider must be dispatched to the appropriate location; and 
3. The emergency responders must be able to know the most efficient route to reach that location. 

 

Section 1. Basic Work 

Basic work involves information and data preparation needed for the 9-1-1 GIS database but does NOT 
involve updating the 9-1-1 GIS database directly. 

PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to provide notification, information, and records that are essential for the 
maintenance of the 9-1-1 GIS database in its jurisdiction within the COUNTY’s provisioning boundary 
within 30 days of approval, assignment or action, unless otherwise noted:   

1. Boundaries 
In regards to boundaries the PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:  
1.1. Annexations and Disannexations: 

(a) Inform the COUNTY of all proposed annexations and disannexations no later than twenty 
(20) business days prior to consideration by its governing body and provide the COUNTY a 
map and description of all subject areas;  

(b) Notify the COUNTY of all approved annexations and disannexations within 24 hours of 
approval and provide the COUNTY a copy of official documentation and maps; and 

(c) Provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated municipal boundary polygon in GIS format, 
as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement, as soon as possible following any 
annexation or disannexation. 

1.2. Public Safety Answering Points (PSAP): 
(a) Inform the COUNTY of any proposed change to alter the PSAP boundary no later than 

twenty (20) business days prior to consideration by its governing body and provide the 
COUNTY a map and description of all subject areas;  

(b) Coordinate all PSAP boundary changes with the COUNTY;  
(c) Inform the COUNTY of the desired effective date of any PSAP boundary change;  
(d) Notify the COUNTY of all approved PSAP boundary changes within 24 hours of approval and 

provide COUNTY official documentation and maps; and  



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 2 of 7 

(e) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated PSAP polygon in GIS format, as 
outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 

1.3. Emergency Service Boundary (ESB): 
(a) Inform the COUNTY of any proposed changes to alter a law, fire, or emergency medical 

service ESB no later than twenty (20) business days prior to consideration by its governing 
body and provide the COUNTY a map and description of all subject area;  

(b) Coordinate all ESB changes with the COUNTY;  
(c) Inform the COUNTY of the desired effective date of all ESB changes;  
(d) Notify the COUNTY of all approved ESB changes within 24 hours of approval and provide 

COUNTY official documentation and maps; and 
(e) Optionally, provide the COUNTY maintained and updated law, fire, and emergency medical 

service ESB polygons in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.  
 

2. Public Safety Agencies   
 In regards to public safety agencies (PSA) the PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:    

2.1. First Responders 
(a) Inform the COUNTY of any proposed change in a PSA responsible for providing PSAP, law, 

fire, or emergency medical service no later than twenty (20) business days prior to 
consideration by its governing body;  

(b) Coordinate the change of any PSA with the COUNTY;  
(c) Inform the COUNTY of the desired effective date of a change to any PSA;  
(d) Notify the COUNTY of a change to any PSA within 24 hours of approval and provide COUNTY 

official documentation; and  
(e) Provide the County the name, contact information, and any other relative information of 

each PSA who provides services within the municipality’s jurisdiction.   
 

3. Streets   
In regards streets PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to: 
3.1. Names 

(a) Proposed: 
(i) Provide the COUNTY with all proposed street names for their review and determination 

in accordance with Exhibit A, Section 1, Subsection 1, of this Agreement;  
(ii) Prohibit the use of any street names deemed a duplication, including phonetically, 

within the same postal community and within the COUNTY’s provisioning boundary; and 
(iii) Cancel any nonessential street name held in reservation by the COUNTY. 

(b) New/Approved: 
(i) Ensure any approved street name complies with Exhibit B, Section 3.1(a), of this 

Agreement;  
(ii) Provide the COUNTY a layout or plat of named streets within 10 business days following 

the PUBIC AGENCY’s final approval; and 
(iii) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated road centerlines in GIS 

format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 3 of 7 

(c) Renamed: 
(i) Ensure any renamed street complies with Exhibit B, Section 3.1(a), of this Agreement; 
(ii) Coordinate the renaming of any street with the COUNTY;  
(iii) Inform the COUNTY the desired effective date of any renamed street; 
(iv) Provide the COUNTY documentation, including a layout or plat, of any renamed street 

within 10 business days following the PUBLIC AGENCY’s final approval; and  
(v) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated road centerlines in GIS 

format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 
3.2. Layout: 

(a) Supply the COUNTY with a map or plat of any street which is: 
(i) Platted; 
(ii) Official recognized and named; 
(iii) Undergoing new construction; or 
(iv) Altered to change its positional location, including extended or shorted; and 

(b) Provide the COUNTY with documentation, including a layout or plat, of any street which is 
permanently closed, abandoned, discontinued, or vacated within ten (10) business days 
following the PUBLIC AGENCY’s final approval; and 

(c) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated road centerlines in GIS format, 
as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.  

3.3. Address Ranges: 
(a) Provide the COUNTY the address range for every named street segment, including: 

(i) Low and high address numbers; 
(ii) Address Parity (odd, even, both) for each side of the street (left, right); and 
(iii) Direction in which address numbers increase; and 

(b) Provide the COUNTY a map or plat which displays the address range of each named street 
segment. 

3.4. Functional Classifications: 
(a) Provide the COUNTY functional classification of each street; and 
(b) Notify the COUNTY when the functional classification of any street changes. 

3.5. Status 
(a) Provide written notification frame to the COUNTY of any street which is: 

(i) Approved; and  
(ii) Accepted. 

3.6. Traffic Regulations 
(a) Speed Limits: 

(i) Provide the COUNTY with official documentation of any approved or altered speed limit 
within 24 hours of approval; and 

(ii) Upon written request, supply the COUNTY detailed information on previously 
established speed limits. 

(b) Direction of Travel Flow: 
(i) Provide the COUNTY with official documentation of any street designated for one-way 

traffic within 24 hours of approval; and 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 4 of 7 

(ii) Upon written request, supply the COUNTY detailed information on streets previously 
designated for one-way traffic. 

 

4. Addresses   
In regards to address numbers PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to: 
4.1. New: 

(a) Ensure each assigned address complies with and validates against the street name and 
address range information provided to the COUNTY under Exhibit B, Section 1, subsections 
3.1(b) and 3.3(a), of this Agreement;   

(b) Notify the COUNTY in writing of each address assignment within 10 business days of 
assignment.  Include with each notice: 
(i) The full and complete address, including all appropriated address characteristic;  
(i) A map, or coordinates, with positional accuracy of the structure or designated site 

location within +/- 25 feet of its true location or intended designation; and 
(ii) The effective date of the assignment; 

(c) Coordinate all mass address assignments with the COUNTY; and 
(d) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in 

GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 
4.2. Reassigned/Corrected: 

(a) Ensure each reassigned or corrected address complies with and validates against the street 
name and address range information provided to the COUNTY under Exhibit B, Section 1, 
subsections 3.1(b) and 3.3(a), of this Agreement;   

(b) Notify the COUNTY in writing of each address change or correction within 10 business days 
of its reassignment.  Include with each notice: 
(ii) The full and complete former address, including all appropriated address characteristic;  
(iii) The full and complete new address, including all appropriated address characteristic;  
(i) The effective date of the assignment; 

(c) Coordinate all mass address changes with the COUNTY; and 
(d) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in 

GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 
4.3. Relocation: 

(a) Notify the COUNTY in writing when the spatial location of any addressed structure or site 
occurs. Include with each notice: 
(iv) The full and complete address, including all appropriated address characteristic;  
(i) A map, or coordinates, with positional accuracy of the structure or designated site’s new 

location within +/- 25 feet of its true location or intended designation; and 
(ii) The effective date of the change; 

(b) Coordinate all mass address relocations with the COUNTY; and  
(c) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in 

GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 
4.4. Cancellation: 

(a) Notify COUNTY in writing of any address assignment which subsequently cancelled, voided 
or otherwise deemed invalid for use.  The notice shall include: 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 5 of 7 

(v) The full and complete address, including all appropriated address characteristic;  
(i)  The effective date; and 

(b) Coordinate all mass address cancellations with the COUNTY; and 
(c) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in 

GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement. 
 

5. Subdivision 
In regards to subdivisions PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:  
5.1. Plats: 

(a) Ensure all street names which appear on the plat were preapproved in accordance with 
Exhibit A, Section 1, of this Agreement; 

(b) Provide COUNTY a copy of all plats within 10 business days of approval; 
(c) Notify COUNTY of all streets undergoing construction prior to a plat’s final approval; and 
(d) Furnish COUNTY a map or plat which prominently displayed street names and address 

numbers within 10 business of the finalization of address assignments. 
 

 

Section 2. Discrepancy and Error Resolution Work 

Discrepancy and error resolution work involves researching and collecting information necessary to 
resolve any identified or reported inaccuracy associated with 9-1-1 database but does NOT involve 
updating the 9-1-1 database directly.   

PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to expeditiously research and provide accurate information to the COUNTY that 
is necessary to resolve any discrepancies or errors identified or reported by an authorized stakeholder.  
Discrepancies and errors include, but are not limited to: 

 
1. 9-1-1 call errors: 

1.1. Incorrect Automatic Location Identifier (ALI); 
1.2. Call Misroute; or 
1.3. No Record Found (NRF). 

2. Telephone Number (TN) Database errors: 
2.1. Incorrect ALI; 
2.2. Missing Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) record; or 
2.3. Incorrect MSAG record. 

3. Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) Database errors: 
3.1. Missing MSAG records; 
3.2. Incorrect MSAG records; 

4. 9-1-1 GIS database errors: 
4.1. Geometry, such as 

(a) Duplicate Features; 
(b) Feature Outside Provisioning Boundary; 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 6 of 7 

(c) Feature Gap or Overlap; or 
(d) Road Centerline (RCL) Disconnect; 

4.2. Attribute, such as: 
(a) Mismatch compared to another layer; 
(b) RCL Parity Issue; 
(c) Missing Critical Field Value; 
(d) Unmatched Site/Structure Address Point (SSAP) to ALI Record; 
(e) Unmatched RCL to MSAG Record; 
(f) Duplicate Globally Unique Identifications (GUIDs); or  
(g) Missing Routing Uniform Resource Identifier (URI). 

5. Address errors: 
5.1. Any address reported by a property owner, resident, member of the public, service provider, 

government entity, etc. for which no 9-1-1 address point exists.   
5.2. Any reported address which cannot be validated against a RCL or MSAG Record. 

 

Section 3. GIS Work  

GIS work is optional and involves maintaining and updating GIS data related to the 9-1-1 GIS database in 
the PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within the COUNTY’s provisioning boundary.  GIS work does NOT 
involve updating the 9-1-1 GIS database directly.   

When conducting GIS work related to this Agreement PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to: 
 
1. Maintenance 

Create and maintain current GIS data related to one or more 9-1-1 GIS data layers: 
(a) Site/Structure Address Points (SSAPs); 
(b) Road Centerlines (RCLs); 
(c) Municipal Boundaries; 
(d) PSAP Boundaries; 
(e) Emergency Service Zones (ESZ); 
(f) Law Emergency Service Boundary (ESB); 
(g) Fire ESB; and 
(h) Emergency Medical Service (EMS) ESB. 

 
2. Data Requirement 

Follow the GIS data requirements outlined the CAPCOG NG9-1-1 Transitional GIS Data 
Requirements, in accordance with Exhibit C, Attachment B, of this Agreement. 

 
3. Quality 
 Perform quality assurance/quality control measure to ensure GIS data provided to the COUNTY is 

high quality.   
 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit B-Public Agency Duties_2023.docx  Page 7 of 7 

4. Format 
Provide GIS data to the COUNTY in ESRI file geodatabase or shapefile format. 
 

5. Coordinate System 
Submit GIS data to the COUNTY in a common projected coordinate system.  
 

6. Metadata 
Include metadata with all GIS data provided to the COUNTY that includes, at a minimum: 

(a) A description of the data (Summary and Description);  
(b) Definitions of the attributes and the attribute values; 
(c) Time period covered by the data; 
(d) Restrictions to access and/or use of the data; 
(e) Contact information; and  
(f) Keywords that enable users to search and find data. 

 
7. Timely Submittal 

Submit GIS data to the COUNTY by the 10th business day of each month. 
 

8. Non-geospatial Data and Information 
Continue to submit to the COUNTY all notification, information, and records that are essential for 
the maintenance of the 9-1-1 GIS database in its jurisdiction within COUNTY’s provisioning boundary 
as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 1, of this Agreement. 



  
911 Database ILA_Exhibit C-CAPCOG ILA_2023.docx   
 

Exhibit C 
CAPCOG INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR 9-1-1 GIS DATABASE MANAGEMENT 

  
 





















































911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 1 of 16 

Exhibit D 

USPS Publication 28 Appendix C 
  
 
C1 Street Suffix Abbreviations   
The following table lists examples of suffix forms that are primary street suffix names, common 
street suffixes or suffix abbreviations, and recommended official Postal Service standard suffix 
abbreviations. 
  

Primary Street Suffix Name 
Commonly Used Street 
Suffix or Abbreviation 

Postal Service Standard 
Suffix Abbreviation 

ALLEY ALLEE ALY 

ALLEY 

ALLY 

ALY 

ANEX ANEX ANX 

ANNEX 

ANNX 

ANX 

ARCADE ARC ARC 

ARCADE 

AVENUE AV AVE 

AVE 

AVEN 

AVENU 

AVENUE 

AVN 

AVNUE 

BAYOU BAYOO BYU 

BAYOU 

BEACH BCH BCH 

BEACH 

BEND BEND BND 

BND 

BLUFF BLF BLF 

BLUF 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 2 of 16 

 
 

BLUFF 

BLUFFS BLUFFS BLFS 

BOTTOM BOT BTM 

BTM 

BOTTM 

BOTTOM 

BOULEVARD BLVD BLVD 

BOUL 

BOULEVARD 

BOULV 

BRANCH BR BR 

BRNCH 

BRANCH 

BRIDGE BRDGE BRG 

BRG 

BRIDGE 

BROOK BRK BRK 

BROOK 

BROOKS BROOKS BRKS 

BURG BURG BG 

BURGS BURGS BGS 

BYPASS BYP BYP 

BYPA 

BYPAS 

BYPASS 

BYPS 

CAMP CAMP CP 

CP 

CMP 

CANYON CANYN CYN 

CANYON 

CNYN 

CAPE CAPE CPE 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 3 of 16 

CPE 

CAUSEWAY CAUSEWAY CSWY 

CAUSWA 

CSWY 

CENTER CEN CTR 

CENT 

CENTER 

CENTR 

CENTRE 

CNTER 

CNTR 

CTR 

CENTERS CENTERS CTRS 

CIRCLE CIR CIR 

CIRC 

CIRCL 

CIRCLE 

CRCL 

CRCLE 

CIRCLES CIRCLES CIRS 

CLIFF CLF CLF 

CLIFF 

CLIFFS CLFS CLFS 

CLIFFS 

CLUB CLB CLB 

CLUB 

COMMON COMMON CMN 

COMMONS COMMONS CMNS 

CORNER COR COR 

CORNER 

CORNERS CORNERS CORS 

CORS 

COURSE COURSE CRSE 

CRSE 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 4 of 16 

COURT COURT CT 

CT 

COURTS COURTS CTS 

CTS 

COVE COVE CV 

CV 

COVES COVES CVS 

CREEK CREEK CRK 

CRK 

CRESCENT CRESCENT CRES 

CRES 

CRSENT 

CRSNT 

CREST CREST CRST 

CROSSING CROSSING XING 

CRSSNG 

XING 

CROSSROAD CROSSROAD XRD 

CROSSROADS CROSSROADS XRDS 

CURVE CURVE CURV 

DALE DALE DL 

DL 

DAM DAM DM 

DM 

DIVIDE DIV DV 

DIVIDE 

DV 

DVD 

DRIVE DR DR 

DRIV 

DRIVE 

DRV 

DRIVES DRIVES DRS 

ESTATE EST EST 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 5 of 16 

ESTATE 

ESTATES ESTATES ESTS 

ESTS 

EXPRESSWAY EXP EXPY 

EXPR 

EXPRESS 

EXPRESSWAY 

EXPW 

EXPY 

EXTENSION EXT EXT 

EXTENSION 

EXTN 

EXTNSN 

EXTENSIONS EXTS EXTS 

FALL FALL FALL 

FALLS FALLS FLS 

FLS 

FERRY FERRY FRY 

FRRY 

FRY 

FIELD FIELD FLD 

FLD 

FIELDS FIELDS FLDS 

FLDS 

FLAT FLAT FLT 

FLT 

FLATS FLATS FLTS 

FLTS 

FORD FORD FRD 

FRD 

FORDS FORDS FRDS 

FOREST FOREST FRST 

FORESTS 

FRST 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 6 of 16 

FORGE FORG FRG 

FORGE 

FRG 

FORGES FORGES FRGS 

FORK FORK FRK 

FRK 

FORKS FORKS FRKS 

FRKS 

FORT FORT FT 

FRT 

FT 

FREEWAY FREEWAY FWY 

FREEWY 

FRWAY 

FRWY 

FWY 

GARDEN GARDEN GDN 

GARDN 

GRDEN 

GRDN 

GARDENS GARDENS GDNS 

GDNS 

GRDNS 

GATEWAY GATEWAY GTWY 

GATEWY 

GATWAY 

GTWAY 

GTWY 

GLEN GLEN GLN 

GLN 

GLENS GLENS GLNS 

GREEN GREEN GRN 

GRN 

GREENS GREENS GRNS 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 7 of 16 

GROVE GROV GRV 

GROVE 

GRV 

GROVES GROVES GRVS 

HARBOR HARB HBR 

HARBOR 

HARBR 

HBR 

HRBOR 

HARBORS HARBORS HBRS 

HAVEN HAVEN HVN 

HVN 

HEIGHTS HT HTS 

HTS 

HIGHWAY HIGHWAY HWY 

HIGHWY 

HIWAY 

HIWY 

HWAY 

HWY 

HILL HILL HL 

HL 

HILLS HILLS HLS 

HLS 

HOLLOW HLLW HOLW 

HOLLOW 

HOLLOWS 

HOLW 

HOLWS 

INLET INLT INLT 

ISLAND IS IS 

ISLAND 

ISLND 

ISLANDS ISLANDS ISS 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 8 of 16 

ISLNDS 

ISS 

ISLE ISLE ISLE 

ISLES 

JUNCTION JCT JCT 

JCTION 

JCTN 

JUNCTION 

JUNCTN 

JUNCTON 

JUNCTIONS JCTNS JCTS 

JCTS 

JUNCTIONS 

KEY KEY KY 

KY 

KEYS KEYS KYS 

KYS 

KNOLL KNL KNL 

KNOL 

KNOLL 

KNOLLS KNLS KNLS 

KNOLLS 

LAKE LK LK 

LAKE 

LAKES LKS LKS 

LAKES 

LAND LAND LAND 

LANDING LANDING LNDG 

LNDG 

LNDNG 

LANE LANE LN 

LN 

LIGHT LGT LGT 

LIGHT 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 9 of 16 

LIGHTS LIGHTS LGTS 

LOAF LF LF 

LOAF 

LOCK LCK LCK 

LOCK 

LOCKS LCKS LCKS 

LOCKS 

LODGE LDG LDG 

LDGE 

LODG 

LODGE 

LOOP LOOP LOOP 

LOOPS 

MALL MALL MALL 

MANOR MNR MNR 

MANOR 

MANORS MANORS MNRS 

MNRS 

MEADOW MEADOW MDW 

MEADOWS MDW MDWS 

MDWS 

MEADOWS 

MEDOWS 

MEWS MEWS MEWS 

MILL MILL ML 

MILLS MILLS MLS 

MISSION MISSN MSN 

MSSN 

MOTORWAY MOTORWAY MTWY 

MOUNT MNT MT 

MT 

MOUNT 

MOUNTAIN MNTAIN MTN 

MNTN 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 10 of 16 

MOUNTAIN 

MOUNTIN 

MTIN 

MTN 

MOUNTAINS MNTNS MTNS 

MOUNTAINS 

NECK NCK NCK 

NECK 

ORCHARD ORCH ORCH 

ORCHARD 

ORCHRD 

OVAL OVAL OVAL 

OVL 

OVERPASS OVERPASS OPAS 

PARK PARK PARK 

PRK 

PARKS PARKS PARK 

PARKWAY PARKWAY PKWY 

PARKWY 

PKWAY 

PKWY 

PKY 

PARKWAYS PARKWAYS PKWY 

PKWYS 

PASS PASS PASS 

PASSAGE PASSAGE PSGE 

PATH PATH PATH 

PATHS 

PIKE PIKE PIKE 

PIKES 

PINE PINE PNE 

PINES PINES PNES 

PNES 

PLACE PL PL 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 11 of 16 

PLAIN PLAIN PLN 

PLN 

PLAINS PLAINS PLNS 

PLNS 

PLAZA PLAZA PLZ 

PLZ 

PLZA 

POINT POINT PT 

PT 

POINTS POINTS PTS 

PTS 

PORT PORT PRT 

PRT 

PORTS PORTS PRTS 

PRTS 

PRAIRIE PR PR 

PRAIRIE 

PRR 

RADIAL RAD RADL 

RADIAL 

RADIEL 

RADL 

RAMP RAMP RAMP 

RANCH RANCH RNCH 

RANCHES 

RNCH 

RNCHS 

RAPID RAPID RPD 

RPD 

RAPIDS RAPIDS RPDS 

RPDS 

REST REST RST 

RST 

RIDGE RDG RDG 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 12 of 16 

RDGE 

RIDGE 

RIDGES RDGS RDGS 

RIDGES 

RIVER RIV RIV 

RIVER 

RVR 

RIVR 

ROAD RD RD 

ROAD 

ROADS ROADS RDS 

RDS 

ROUTE ROUTE RTE 

ROW ROW ROW 

RUE RUE RUE 

RUN RUN RUN 

SHOAL SHL SHL 

SHOAL 

SHOALS SHLS SHLS 

SHOALS 

SHORE SHOAR SHR 

SHORE 

SHR 

SHORES SHOARS SHRS 

SHORES 

SHRS 

SKYWAY SKYWAY SKWY 

SPRING SPG SPG 

SPNG 

SPRING 

SPRNG 

SPRINGS SPGS SPGS 

SPNGS 

SPRINGS 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 13 of 16 

SPRNGS 

SPUR SPUR SPUR 

SPURS SPURS SPUR 

SQUARE SQ SQ 

SQR 

SQRE 

SQU 

SQUARE 

SQUARES SQRS SQS 

SQUARES 

STATION STA STA 

STATION 

STATN 

STN 

STRAVENUE STRA STRA 

STRAV 

STRAVEN 

STRAVENUE 

STRAVN 

STRVN 

STRVNUE 

STREAM STREAM STRM 

STREME 

STRM 

STREET STREET ST 

STRT 

ST 

STR 

STREETS STREETS STS 

SUMMIT SMT SMT 

SUMIT 

SUMITT 

SUMMIT 

TERRACE TER TER 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 14 of 16 

TERR 

TERRACE 

THROUGHWAY THROUGHWAY TRWY 

TRACE TRACE TRCE 

TRACES 

TRCE 

TRACK TRACK TRAK 

TRACKS 

TRAK 

TRK 

TRKS 

TRAFFICWAY TRAFFICWAY TRFY 

TRAIL TRAIL TRL 

TRAILS 

TRL 

TRLS 

TRAILER TRAILER TRLR 

TRLR 

TRLRS 

TUNNEL TUNEL TUNL 

TUNL 

TUNLS 

TUNNEL 

TUNNELS 

TUNNL 

TURNPIKE TRNPK TPKE 

TURNPIKE 

TURNPK 

UNDERPASS UNDERPASS UPAS 

UNION UN UN 

UNION 

UNIONS UNIONS UNS 

VALLEY VALLEY VLY 

VALLY 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 15 of 16 

VLLY 

VLY 

VALLEYS VALLEYS VLYS 

VLYS 

VIADUCT VDCT VIA 

VIA 

VIADCT 

VIADUCT 

VIEW VIEW VW 

VW 

VIEWS VIEWS VWS 

VWS 

VILLAGE VILL VLG 

VILLAG 

VILLAGE 

VILLG 

VILLIAGE 

VLG 

VILLAGES VILLAGES VLGS 

VLGS 

VILLE VILLE VL 

VL 

VISTA VIS VIS 

VIST 

VISTA 

VST 

VSTA 

WALK WALK WALK 

WALKS WALKS WALK 

WALL WALL WALL 

WAY WY WAY 

WAY 

WAYS WAYS WAYS 

WELL WELL WL 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit D-USPS Pub 28 Appx C_2023.docx  Page 16 of 16 

WELLS WELLS WLS 

WLS 

 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit E-Acronyms and Definitions_2023.docx  Page 1 of 6 

Exhibit E 

Acronyms and Definitions 
  
 
 
Acronyms 
 

ALI – Automatic Location Identification 

ANI – Automatic Number Identification 

AP – Address Point 

CAPCOG – Capital Area Council of Governments 

CAECD – Capital Area Emergency Communications District 

E9-1-1 – Enhanced 9-1-1 

EMS – Emergency Medical Service  

ESB – Emergency Service Boundary 

ESN – Emergency Service Number 

ESRI – Environmental Systems Research Institute 

ESZ – Emergency Service Zone 

GIS – Geospatial Information System 

GUID – Globally Unique Identification 

MSAG – Master Street Address Guide 

NENA – National Emergency Number Association 

NG9-1-1 – Next Generation 9-1-1 

NRF – No Record Found 

PSA – Public Safety Agency  

PSAP – Public Safety Answering Point 

RCL – Road Centerline 

SSAP – Site/Structure Address Point 

TN – Telephone Number 

USPS – United States Postal Service 

URI – Uniform Resource Identifier 

URN – Uniform Resource Name 

 
  



911 Database ILA_Exhibit E-Acronyms and Definitions_2023.docx  Page 2 of 6 

 
Definitions  
 

9-1-1 GIS Database – is the geospatial database maintained and updated by the County that 
include, at a minimum, address points, road centerlines, Public Safety Answer Point (PSAP) 
boundaries, Emergency Service Boundaries (ESBs), and city limits (municipal) boundaries for the 
County’s provisioning boundary. 
 
Address Characteristics – are the logical, grammatical order of physical address elements which 
follow the National Emergency Number Association (NENA) and United States Postal Service 
(USPS) standards:  Address Number, Pre-Directional, Street Name, Street Suffix, Secondary Unit 
Designator, Secondary Unit Number. 
 
Example, the address characteristics of 525 E. Kneenah St., Apt. 2105 are: 

   
ADDRESS EXAMPLE ADDRESS ELEMENT ELEMENT DESCRIPTION:  VALID 9-1-1 DATABASE ENTRIES  
525 Address Number Numeric component of the street address. 
E Pre-Directional Leading directional prefix:  N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE, SW. 
Kneenah Street Name Official street name approved by the local government authority. 
St Street Suffix Abbreviation of street type.  Refer to USPS Pub. 28 Appx. C1. 
 Post-Directional Trailing directional suffix:  N, S, E, W, NE, NW, SE, SW. 
Apt Secondary Unit Designator Additional Location information. Refer to USPS Pub. 28 Appx C2. 
2105 Secondary Unit Number Alphanumeric designation associated with add’l location information. 

 
 
Address Location Identifier (ALI) – is the automatic display at the Public Safety Answering Point 
(PSAP) of the caller’s telephone number (TN), the address/location of the telephone and 
supplementary emergency services information of the location from with a 9-1-1 call originates. 
 
Address Number Identifier (ANI) – is the telephone number associated with the call origination, 
originally associated with the access line of the 9-1-1 caller. 
 
Address Point (AP) – refer to Site/Structure Address Point. 
 
Call Misroute – is the term used to describe when a 9-1-1 call is routed to an incorrect Public 
Safety Answering Point (PSAP) due to a network or database discrepancy. 
 
Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) – is a regional planning commission and political 
subdivision of the State of Texas organized and operating under the Texas Regional Planning Act 
of 1965, as amended, chapter 391 of the Local Government Code.  The Executive Committee is 
the agency’s governing body.  
 
Capital Area Emergency Communications District (CAECD) – is a regional emergency 
communications district of the State of Texas organized and operating under Chapter 772, 
Subchapter G of the Health and Safety Code, as amended.  The CAPCOG Executive Committee 
serves as the district’s Board of Managers. 
 
City Limit Boundary – refer to Municipal Boundary 

https://pe.usps.com/text/pub28/28apc_002.htm
https://pe.usps.com/text/pub28/28apc_003.htm


911 Database ILA_Exhibit E-Acronyms and Definitions_2023.docx  Page 3 of 6 

 
Emergency Service Boundary (ESB) – is a polygon data layer that represents the geographic area 
of responsibility for a Public Safety Agency within the geographic extent of the County’s 
provisioning boundary.  Each 9-1-1 GIS database includes, at a minimum, a law ESB layer, a fire 
ESB layer, and an emergency medical service (EMS) ESB layer. 
 
Emergency Service Number (ESN) – is a number that is designated in the Master Street Address 
Guide (MSAG) based on physical address. 9-1-1 Call Centers (PSAPs) receive a display of the ESN 
information which shows which police, fire and rescue agency serves the telephone number 
calling 9-1-1. 
 
Emergency Service Responder – refer to Public Safety Agency. 
 
Emergency Service Response Provider – refer to Public Safety Agency. 
 
Emergency Service Zone (ESZ) – is a polygon data layer representing the area within a 
provisioning boundary served by a unique combination of law, fire, and EMS responders. ESZs are 
optional for inclusion in the NG9-1-1 GIS database. 
 
Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) – is a telephone system which includes network switching, database and 
Public Safety Answering Point premise elements capable of providing automatic location 
identification data, selective routing, selective transfer, fixed transfer, and a call back number. 
 
Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI) – is an international supplier of geographic 
information system (GIS) software, web GIS and geodatabase management application. 
 
Functional Classification – is a system which define the role a street, or roadway, plays in the 
overall transportation system.   
 
First Responder – is a peace officer, fire protection personnel, volunteer firefighter, emergency 
medical services personnel, emergency response operator, emergency services dispatcher or 
other emergency response personnel employed by an agency. 
 
Geospatial Information System (GIS) – is an integration of hardware, software, and data for 
capturing, managing, analyzing, and displaying all forms of geographically referenced information. 
 
GIS Data Layer – is a group of geographic features that reside in a table of information with 
corresponding locations on the earth (map) represented as either points, lines, or polygons.  Also 
known as a feature class.  
 
Globally Unique Identification (GUID) – is a unique identifier that is assigned to each record 
(feature) in the COUNTY’s 9-1-1 GIS database; a GUID uniquely identified a feature both within 
the COUNTY’s 9-1-1 GIS database provisioning boundary and across all 9-1-1 GIS databases. 
 
Law Enforcement Agency (LE) – is an agency of the State of Texas, or an agency of a political 
subdivision of the State authorized by law to employ peace officers.  
Refer: Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Section 59.01(5) 
  



911 Database ILA_Exhibit E-Acronyms and Definitions_2023.docx  Page 4 of 6 

Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) – A database of street names and address ranges defining 
emergency service zones for 9-1-1 purposes. Maintained by county address coordinators via the 
database provider’s portal. 
 
Metadata – is a summary document which provides content, quality, type, creation, and spatial 
information about a dataset.  It can be stored as a text file (TXT), extensible Markup Language 
(XML), or database record. 
 
Municipal Boundary – is a polygon data layer representing the geographic extent of a city’s 
administrative boundary, not including any extra-territorial jurisdiction 
 
National Emergency Number Association (NENA) – is the national 9-1-1 Association which serves 
the public safety community as the only professional organization solely focused on 9-1-1 policy, 
technology, operations, and education issues. 
 
Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG911) – is a system comprised of Emergency Services IP networks 
(ESInets), IP-based Software Services and Applications, Databases and Data Management 
processes that are interconnected to Public Safety Answering Point premise equipment. The 
system provides location-based routing to the appropriate emergency entity. The system uses 
additionally available data elements and business policies to augment PSAP routing. The system 
delivers geodetic and/or civic location information and the call back number. 
 
The system supports the transfer of calls to other NG9-1-1 capable PSAPs or other authorized 
entities based on and including accumulated data. NG9-1-1 provides standardized interfaces for 
call and message services, processes all types of emergency calls including non-voice (multi-
media) messages, acquires and integrates additional data useful to call routing and handling for 
appropriate emergency entities. NG9-1-1 supports all E9-1-1 features and functions and meets 
current and emerging needs for emergency communication from caller to Public Safety entities. 
 
NG9-1-1 – refer to Next Generation 9-1-1. 
 
No Record Found (NRF) – is the condition where no Automatic Location Identifier (ALI) 
information is available for display at the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP). 
 
Parity – is the odd or even property of an integer.  In address matching, parity, is used to locate a 
geocoded address on the correct side of the street (such as odd numbers on the south or east 
side and even numbers north or west side.) 
 
Primary Street Name – is an essential street name element which is considered to be the parent 
name of the street. 
 
Provisioning Boundary – is the authoritative polygon data layer that defines the COUNTY’s 
geographic area of 9-1-1 GIS responsibility. This should be the entire extent of the COUNTY’s 
administrative boundary, plus any other adjacent areas or minus areas within its administrative 
boundaries as agreed to between the COUNTY and another city or county.  Provisioning 
boundaries may only be modified with express written concurrence between the COUNTY, 
adjacent PUBLIC AGENCIES, and CAPCOG. 
 



911 Database ILA_Exhibit E-Acronyms and Definitions_2023.docx  Page 5 of 6 

Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) boundary – is the authoritative polygon data layer 
representing the geographic area within a provisioning boundary served by a single 9-1-1 call 
center (PSAP) to which all emergency requests are initially routed. 
 
Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) – is a continuously operated communications facility that is 
assigned the responsibility to receive 9-1-1 calls and, as appropriate, to dispatch public safety 
services or to extend, transfer or relay 9-1-1 calls to appropriate public safety agencies. 
  
Public Safety Agency (PSA) – is the division of a public agency that provides 
telecommunications/dispatch, law enforcement, firefighting, medical, or other emergency 
services, or a private entity that provides emergency medical or ambulance services. Also referred 
to as emergency service response providers or first responders. 
 
Road Centerline (RCL) – is a data layer of lines estimating the centerline of a roadway that 
contains information such as road name, road classification, and address range. 
 
Site/Structure Address Point (AP) – is a data layer of points identifying sites or structures 
associated with a street address, or the location of access to a site or structure, but may also 
represent landmarks. 
 
The address number is the numeric component of a street address which proceeds the primary 
street name (example: 100 GRANITE DR). 
 
The house number suffix or secondary number is an alphanumeric component of a street address 
that describe an apartment, room , suites, or other secondary addressing unit that is  part of the 
property description by the house number.  (Example: 256 WARD ST, APT A; 256 WARD ST #A.)  
 
Street Centerline – refer to Road Centerline. 
 
Street Name – is an identifying name given to a street that consists of one or more street name 
elements.   
 
Street Name Elements – in proper logical order are the prefix directional primary street name, 
street suffix, and the post directional. 
 
Street Name Prefix Directional – is a street name element which precedes the primary street 
name to indicate the primary direction of the street.  For 9-1-1 purposes, the prefix directional is 
limited to a two-character maximum and shall be one of the eight NENA approved abbreviated 
directional indicators (i.e., N, E, W, S, NW, SW, NE, and SE). 
 
Street Post Directional – is a street name element which describes the travel limited to a two-
character maximum and describes travel direction (i.e., NB, EB, SB, and WB). Only major highways 
and their service roads have post directional. 
 
Street Suffix – is a street name element which indicates the road type (e.g., ST, DR, AVE, etc.).  For 
9-1-1 purposes, the street suffix should be abbreviated according to USPS Publication 28 
Appendix C: C1 Street Suffix Abbreviations.  
 

https://pe.usps.com/text/pub28/28apc_002.htm
https://pe.usps.com/text/pub28/28apc_002.htm


911 Database ILA_Exhibit E-Acronyms and Definitions_2023.docx  Page 6 of 6 

United States Postal Service (USPS) – is an independent agency charged with processing and 
delivering mail and with protecting the mails from loss, theft, or abuse in accordance with U.S. 
postal laws. 

 
Uniform Resource Identifier (URI) – is a predictable formatting of text used to identify a resource 
on a network. 
 
Uniform Resource Name (URN) – is a location independent identifier that is designed to be 
unique and persist over extended periods of time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 



Item # 14



Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  

BASTROP COUNTY AND CITY OF SMITHVILLE FOR ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 
 

This lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement, related to Animal Shelter Services ("Agreement"), is 

made and entered by and between the City of Bastrop a municipal corporation, (the "City") and 

Bastrop County, a local governmental entity ("the "County"). The County and the City may be 

herein referred to jointly as the "Parties" and singularly as "Party." 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted under State law and as reflected in its Municipal Code, 

the City has established a Department of Animal Control, related to the operation of a comprehensive 

Animal Control Program within its City limits. The City's Animal Control Code provisions are generally 

enforced by the City, and more specifically its Animal Control Officer, in order to promote the health, 

welfare, and safety of humans and animals within its municipal jurisdiction; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to its Municipal Charter, State law and its Code, the City has the authority to 

contract with one or more public and/or private entities for the purpose of maintaining and 

operating an animal shelter to serve the City's Animal Control requirements and the public's 

needs; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority provided to it by State law and the Local Government 

Code, the County has established and currently operates and maintains an Animal Shelter to 

provide services related to Animal Control to residents and animals located in Bastrop County, 

Texas: and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the above noted authorities held by both the County and the City, the 

Parties have determined that the City desires to delegate to the County, and the County desires to 

be responsible for the operation and management of certain activities related to Animal Control 

within the City's jurisdiction. More specifically, the County and the City desire to formalize their 

mutual agreement that the County will assume the responsibilities and duties concerning post-

impoundment shelter/housing of strays and other impounded animals, the humane euthanasia of 

same (when deemed necessary by the County and in compliance with State and local laws and 

regulations), and the disposal of impounded animals, as set forth herein, which activities shall be 

conducted by the County at the County's Animal Shelter facility ("Shelter"); 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises it is mutually agreed between the Parties 

as follows: 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 8 

 

1.  GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1.1 The Parties acknowledge and agree that all terms used in this Agreement, when not 

specifically defined herein, shall have the meanings set forth in the Bastrop County Rabies 

and Animal Control Ordinance, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part of this 

Agreement. 

1.2 The City shall not deliver domestic livestock or Exotic Animals to the Shelter, unless 

otherwise specifically approved and agreed in advance by the County Shelter personnel. 

The County shall have sole authority to determine, on a case-by-case basis, whether it will 

accept domestic livestock or Exotic Animals at the County's facilities, under the terms set 

forth herein. 

1.3 OPERATIONAL DAYS  The Bastrop County Shelter is generally open to the public and 

available to the City seven (7) days a week, between the hours of 8am and 4pm, with the 

exception of County recognized holidays when the hours may be reduced.  Other 

exceptions to these hours may be due to County declared emergencies per the County 

Judge or other adverse conditions, with County Commissioner liaison approval. Dates that 

the County recognizes as holidays are available to the public by viewing the online 

calendar or by contacting County administrative offices. During the above mentioned hours, 

the Shelter is available for owners to reclaim impounded or held animals. 

1.4 Animals impounded by the City and held by the County at the Shelter will become property 

of the County if they are not reclaimed during the holding period as noted herein. The 

County will dispose of such unclaimed animals as the County deems appropriate to the 

specific circumstances. (E.g., via adoption, humane euthanasia, and/or transfer to a 

rescue society). 

2.  GENERAL PROVISIONS OF ANIMAL CARE 

 
2.1  City Authority to Impound/Deliver Animals to the Shelter 

 

2.1.A  Animals owned or harbored in violation of City Code of Ordinances, or laws of the State 

of Texas, may be taken into custody by an Animal Control Officer or other designated 

official and impounded under the provisions of the City's laws and regulations. Included 

is the authority to deliver such animals to the Shelter, per terms of this Agreement. This 

Agreement pertaining to sheltering, fees, reclaim periods, quarantine, disposition, and 

other requirements shall apply to all animals brought in from within City Limits, 

including those brought by City Animal Control Officers, other designated officials, or 

private citizens. The City may request the assistance of the County in controlling or 

capturing animals within their city limits. However, The County’s assistance will be based 

on availability between the hours of 0800 and 1600 during regularly staffed days (not 

including holidays). Bastrop County may respond to emergencies (ex. due to arrest, 

accident, medical emergency or death of a person -with no caregiver for animal able to be 

located, confirmed possible rabies exposure from an animal without a known owner). If the 

County is available and provides such assistance, there will be a separate hourly 

charge for those services (see Section 4).  

 
 



Page 3 of 8 

 

2.1.B   Owners of impounded animals are required to pay all fees and other costs related to 

the impoundment as set forth by Bastrop County and as agreed between the parties for 

operation of the Shelter. The fees for the impoundment of animals are to be collected 

by the Shelter on behalf of the City and the City agrees that, as partial consideration 

for this Agreement, the County shall have the right to retain all assessed and collected 

fees due from owners or harborers of impounded animals, as set forth in Bastrop 

County Rabies and Animal Control Ordinances.  

 

2.2  Holding Periods and Disposition of Impounded Animals 

 
2.2.A  Dogs or Cats that are Impounded Without Identification. Dogs or cats impounded by 

the Animal Control Department or taken to the Shelter by a person other than the 

harborer or owner of that animal, and which do not have traceable Identification, 

shall be held for a minimum of 48 hours, during which time period the owner may 

present proof of ownership at the Shelter and reclaim the animal, upon payment of all 

applicable fees and costs incurred during and/or related to the impoundment of the 

animal at the Shelter. In the event that a dog or cat is not claimed at the Shelter within 

48 hours, that animal shall become the property of the County, as the City's designee. 

 

2.2.B  Dogs or Cats Impounded With Identification. Dogs or cats impounded by the Animal Control 

Department or taken to the Shelter by a person other than the harborer or owner of that 

animal that have traceable identification or when an owner or harborer of the animal is 

otherwise known by the County or City Animal Control personnel, shall be held by the 

Shelter, or its assignee, for a minimum of five (5) operational days from the date the animal 

enters the Shelter.   

2.2.B.1 During this time, the City Animal Control Department or County Shelter personnel will 

attempt to notify the owner or harborer of the impoundment of the animal, as shown on 

the identification or as otherwise determined by the County.  Holidays and other days 

that the facility is closed are specifically excluded from the minimum five (5) day 

holding period, noted herein.  

 

2.2.B.2 The owner or harborer of such animals may claim them from the County at any time 

during the five (5) day confinement period, after compliance with the requirements 

herein. 

 

2.2.C    In the event that such an impounded animal is not claimed as set forth above, the 
impounded animal shall be deemed voluntarily surrendered by the owner or harborer, 
and shall become the property of the County as of the start of business on the sixth (6th) 
day of impoundment, or at the start of business on the day following the written agreed 
upon date and time as stipulated under (3) (a), and the County may dispose of the animal 
as it deems appropriate. 

 
 

2.3 The five (5) day holding period may be extended if the owner or harborer of an animal that is 

impounded with identification has: 

 

 



Page 4 of 8 

 

2.3.A    Notified the Bastrop County Animal Shelter in writing, on or before the close of 

business on the fifth (5th) day of impoundment, and made written arrangements with 

the Director of the Shelter for a date and time to reclaim the animal, and 

2.3.B    Pays all applicable fees and satisfies other County requirements necessary for claiming 

the impounded animal. 

 
2.4 Animals Surrendered by the Owner/Harborer. In addition to the voluntary surrender of 

animals that are not timely claimed from impoundment, as noted above, all other animals 

surrendered by the owner or harborer to the County shall become the property of the 

County immediately upon completion of the owner or harborer surrender form. Fees for 

owner or harborer surrendered animals are as shown in the "Bastrop Animal Shelter Fee 

Schedule”, as published on the Bastrop County Website / Animal Shelter.  A current fee is 

attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

 

2.5 Animals other than dogs and cats that are impounded. All animals, other than dogs or 

cats, that are impounded by the Animal Control Department or the Shelter, or animals that 

are brought to the Shelter by a person other than the owner or harborer, shall become the 

property of the Shelter immediately upon surrender, unless such ownership is prohibited 

by state or federal law. 

 
 

2.6 Disposition of animals. Any animal that cannot be adopted or transferred to a proper and 

appropriate agency or person shall be euthanized by the Shelter by means approved by 

the American Veterinary Medical Association and/or the Texas Veterinary Medical 

Association or by other State of Texas approved method. S u c h  euthanasia is to be 

administered in compliance with the laws of the State. Animals listed as endangered or 

protected shall be transferred to the proper authority at the earliest possible date or 

otherwise maintained in accordance with State and Federal laws. 

 
2.7 Animals Held on Complaint or by Court Order. If a complaint has been filed in municipal 

court against the owner and/or harborer of an animal that is impounded at the Shelter for 

a violation of the Code, the animal shall not be released except on the order of the City's 

Animal Control Department, which may also direct the owner and/or harborer to pay any 

penalties for violation of its Code, in addition to payment of all impoundment fees and 

costs incurred by the Shelter.  Surrender of an animal by the owner and/or harborer 

thereof, to the Shelter or the Animal Control Department, does not relieve or render the 

owner or harborer immune from the decision of the Court related to that animal, nor from 

the fees, fines, or other costs that may result from a violation of the Code. 

 
2.8   Removal of Animals from Confinement Shelter. 

 
2.8.A Removal of animal from confinement- It is unlawful for any person to remove or allow 

escape from any place of confinement any dog, cat, or other animal which has been 

ordered to be confined in the Shelter, without the express consent of a Court of Law, or the 

County and/or the City. 

 

 



Page 5 of 8 

 

2.8.B Delivery of Impounded Animals  The Parties agree that City's authorized agents shall 

have the right to deliver impounded animals to the custody or control of the County as 

follows: 

 
2.8.B.1 When feasible, the City will deliver impounded animals to the Shelter during the hours 

that the Shelter is generally open to the public, as set forth herein in Article I, 

Paragraph 3. 

 
2.8.B.2 In addition to its general public business hours, the County will provide access to the 

Shelter to the City, for the delivery of animals to the Shelter. 

 
2.8.B.3 Dead Animals and Fowl. Dead animals will not be accepted by the County at the 

Shelter unless such deceased animals are brought to be prepared for rabies specimen 

testing. The City Animal Control Officer shall perform the required preparation, proper 

storage, disposal, labeling, and transfer to the Texas Department of State Health 

Services testing facility.   

2.8.B.4 At the time of delivery, the City's authorized agent(s) shall complete all Shelter Release 

Forms and Impoundment Forms for each animal delivered to the Shelter, including 

animals that are dead and submitted for rabies testing. In addition to release and 

impoundment forms, the City’s authorized agent(s) is responsible for notifying a 

Shelter staff member and remaining with the animal(s) to assist during the intake 

process. 

 

3.  COUNTY RIGHTS and RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

3.1. Bastrop County will provide the necessary impoundment and release Shelter forms for 

use by the City's representatives and agents. 

 

3.2. Upon taking custody of impounded animals at the Shelter, the County will care for and 

hold such animals as per the terms of this Agreement, as follows: 

 
3.3. Animals that are brought to the Shelter by the City as a result of formal complaints filed in a 

Court of Jurisdiction shall be held by the County as ordered by the Court. The staff at the 

shelter must be notified of the required hold period at the time of drop off and the ordered 

hold period must be clearly noted in the impound documentation. 

 
3.4. Sick, injured, or animals deemed a danger to the health and welfare of citizens or Shelter 

staff may be humanely euthanized by the County at any time deemed appropriate, in the 

County's sole discretion. 

3.5. Bastrop County shall not be obligated to provide veterinary care for any sick or injured 

animal that is taken by the Shelter. If either the City or County determines that it will, at its 

sole discretion, seek veterinary care for an impounded animal, then the owner/harborer of 

such animal shall be responsible for payment of any veterinarian fees or medical care costs 

incurred while the animal is under impoundment at the Shelter. 

 

 



Page 6 of 8 

 

 

 
3.6. Bastrop County will not be obligated to provide quarantine facilities or services under this 

Agreement, but may do so at its sole discretion. If the County elects to provide such 

quarantine facilities or services, then all applicable quarantine fees will be paid, by the 

animal owner/harborer prior to initiating the quarantine holding period. Fees for quarantine 

services shall be those set by the Commissioners Court. Any fees paid for quarantine 

services shall be the property of Bastrop County. 

 
3.7. Owners of impounded animals are required to pay all fees and other costs related to the 

impoundment as set by Bastrop County and as detailed in the Bastrop County Rabies 

and Animal Control Ordinances. 

3.8. Quarantine of Animals at the Shelter and Disposition of suspected animals. Any Animal 

that has bitten or scratched a person may be quarantined for observation and disposed 

of by the Shelter as follow: 

 

3.8.A  be immediately euthanized and submitted to DSHS for rabies testing; or 

3.8.B. held for a period of forty-eight (48) hours, while attempting to contact the 

owner, then euthanized and submitted to DSHS for rabies testing; or 

3.8.C. held for a period of ten (10) days from the date of the bite/scratch, after which 1) 

the owner may reclaim (upon payment of fees), 2) the animal may be transferred 

to a rescue agency or adopted out; or 3) the animal may be euthanized and 

disposed of. 

 

3.9. The County will collect and retain all fees paid by animal owners who reclaim animals 

that have been impounded and reclaimed, regardless of which entity or agency placed the 

animal(s) at the Bastrop County Shelter. 

 

3.10. The County will require owners who desire to reclaim their animals to show proper 

identification and current rabies vaccination, prior to release of each impounded animal. 

Any owner located within the jurisdiction of the City that fails to provide proof of rabies 

vaccination may be referred to the City Animal Control Officer for the purpose of citation 

in accordance with City/State law.  

 
4.  TERM and FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION 

 
4.1     This Agreement shall be effective for a term of two (2) years, beginning October 1, 

2023 and ending September 30, 2025. 

 

4.2 The Parties agree that the financial consideration to be paid by the City to the County 

for performance of the services, obligations, and responsibilities under this Agreement are 

as follows: 

 

4.3 The City shall remit to the County Two Hundred and Twenty-Five Dollars per Animal 

($225.00) for the first year of this Agreement and Two Hundred and Seventy Dollars per 

Animal ($270.00) for the second year this Agreement, which amounts due will be 



Page 7 of 8 

 

invoiced by the County by the 5th of each month for the prior month’s services.  The City 

agrees to pay invoice within 30 days. 

 

4.4 If the County provides requested assistance in capturing or controlling animals within their 

city limits, there will be a $100 per hour charge for those services.  These fees will be in 

addition to the service fees in subsection 4.3 above.  Any such fees will be invoiced to the 

City within 60 days of the services being provided. 

 
5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

5.1. Amendment or Revision The City and the County agree that a request to renegotiate, 

amend, or revise this Agreement may be made by either Party at any time during its 

term, upon a minimum of 90 days written notice to the other Party. 

 

5.2. Notices  Written notices related to this Agreement shall be as follows: 

 
 

5.2.A. To the County: 
 

Bastrop County Judge  

804 Pecan Street 

Bastrop, Texas 78602  

With Copy to: 

Bastrop County District Attorney 

804 Pecan Street 
Bastrop, TX 78602 
 
5.2.B. To the City: 
 
City Manager  
_______________ 
 
_________________ 

 
5.3. Effective Date- It is mutually understood and agreed to by the Parties hereto that this 

Agreement shall become effective on the later of the dates noted below, and shall 

remain in effect for a term as set out herein, unless otherwise terminated as per the 

provisions set forth herein.  

 

5.4. Written Notice Not to Renew- If either Party intends not to renew this Agreement, they 

shall give written notice to the other Party at least 90 days prior to the expiration date.  

 
5.5. Automatic Renewal Scenario- Since the services provided in this Agreement are essential 

to the health and safety of the citizens of the City, without such written notice to not renew, 

and without a new Agreement regarding the matters covered in the Agreement, then this 

Agreement will automatically be extended in full force and effect on a year to year basis, 

and the fees due by the City will be increased by 20% for each ensuring year the services 



Page 8 of 8 

 

are provided by the County under such automatic extension. 

5.6. No Liability of City or County Personnel - The Parties agree that no provision of this 

Agreement is intended to or shall be interpreted to negate or diminish any statutory or 

common law rights the City or County may have to Immunity under the laws of the State of 

Texas. 

5.7. Amendments- This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument so stating 

which is executed by the Parties hereto. 

5.8. Severability- If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable for any 

reason and to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, but 

shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law. 

 
5.9. Headings- All headings herein are inserted only for convenience and ease of reference 

and are not to be considered in the construction or interpretation of any provision of this 

Agreement. 

 
5.10. Waivers- No failure or delay of a Party in the exercise of any right given to such Party 

hereunder or by law shall constitute a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial 

exercise of any such right preclude other further exercise thereof or of any other right. The 

waiver by a Party of any breach of any provision hereof shall not be deemed to be a waiver 

of any subsequent breach thereof or of any breach of any other provision hereof. 

 
5.11. Governing Law- This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and applied in accordance 

with and shall be governed by, the laws applicable to the State of Texas.  Any disputes 

regarding this Agreement will be heard in the courts of Bastrop County, Texas, or in the 

Federal District Court in Austin, Western District of Texas, Austin District. 

 
 
THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE 
 
 
_______________________________ Date________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 

     City Secretary 

 
 
COUNTY OF BASTROP 

 
_______________________________ Date_________________________ 
County Judge 
 

 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 

     County Clerk 



Item # 15 & 16



































Item # 18






























	Robert Update to Initiatives 8-11-23.pdf
	Binder3.pdf
	Proclamation Co-Pastors Ronnie  Lenora Holt.pdf
	23.07.10 Council minutes.pdf
	COS Electric Rate Discussion_August_2023 (002).pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14

	Item 7.pdf
	20230727123252437.pdf

	Tax Note 2023.pdf
	Series 2023 Tax Note_COS_8-10-23 (002).pdf
	2023 Tax Note (2)

	SMITHVILLE CITY OF_2023_TN_COUNCIL PRESENTATION.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	SMITHVILLE CITY OF_2023_TN_TIMETABLE (C) (002).pdf

	911 Database ILA with Exhibits_County-CityofSmithville_2023.pdf
	911 Database ILA_Exhibits_2023.pdf
	Exhibit B
	The intent of this scope of work is to facilitate the exchange of information between the COUNTY and the PUBLIC AGENCY to help ensure that efficient and accurate response to emergency calls and text messages in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within ...
	1. Calls and texts must be routed to the correct public safety answering point (PSAP);
	2. The correct emergency service provider must be dispatched to the appropriate location; and
	3. The emergency responders must be able to know the most efficient route to reach that location.
	1. Boundaries
	In regards to boundaries the PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:
	1.1. Annexations and Disannexations:
	(a) Inform the COUNTY of all proposed annexations and disannexations no later than twenty (20) business days prior to consideration by its governing body and provide the COUNTY a map and description of all subject areas;
	(b) Notify the COUNTY of all approved annexations and disannexations within 24 hours of approval and provide the COUNTY a copy of official documentation and maps; and
	(c) Provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated municipal boundary polygon in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement, as soon as possible following any annexation or disannexation.
	1.2. Public Safety Answering Points (PSAP):
	(a) Inform the COUNTY of any proposed change to alter the PSAP boundary no later than twenty (20) business days prior to consideration by its governing body and provide the COUNTY a map and description of all subject areas;
	(b) Coordinate all PSAP boundary changes with the COUNTY;
	(c) Inform the COUNTY of the desired effective date of any PSAP boundary change;
	(d) Notify the COUNTY of all approved PSAP boundary changes within 24 hours of approval and provide COUNTY official documentation and maps; and
	(e) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated PSAP polygon in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	1.3. Emergency Service Boundary (ESB):
	(a) Inform the COUNTY of any proposed changes to alter a law, fire, or emergency medical service ESB no later than twenty (20) business days prior to consideration by its governing body and provide the COUNTY a map and description of all subject area;
	(b) Coordinate all ESB changes with the COUNTY;
	(c) Inform the COUNTY of the desired effective date of all ESB changes;
	(d) Notify the COUNTY of all approved ESB changes within 24 hours of approval and provide COUNTY official documentation and maps; and
	(e) Optionally, provide the COUNTY maintained and updated law, fire, and emergency medical service ESB polygons in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	2. Public Safety Agencies
	In regards to public safety agencies (PSA) the PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:
	2.1. First Responders
	(a) Inform the COUNTY of any proposed change in a PSA responsible for providing PSAP, law, fire, or emergency medical service no later than twenty (20) business days prior to consideration by its governing body;
	(b) Coordinate the change of any PSA with the COUNTY;
	(c) Inform the COUNTY of the desired effective date of a change to any PSA;
	(d) Notify the COUNTY of a change to any PSA within 24 hours of approval and provide COUNTY official documentation; and
	(e) Provide the County the name, contact information, and any other relative information of each PSA who provides services within the municipality’s jurisdiction.
	3. Streets
	In regards streets PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:
	3.1. Names
	(a) Proposed:
	(i) Provide the COUNTY with all proposed street names for their review and determination in accordance with Exhibit A, Section 1, Subsection 1, of this Agreement;
	(ii) Prohibit the use of any street names deemed a duplication, including phonetically, within the same postal community and within the COUNTY’s provisioning boundary; and
	(iii) Cancel any nonessential street name held in reservation by the COUNTY.
	(b) New/Approved:
	(i) Ensure any approved street name complies with Exhibit B, Section 3.1(a), of this Agreement;
	(ii) Provide the COUNTY a layout or plat of named streets within 10 business days following the PUBIC AGENCY’s final approval; and
	(iii) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated road centerlines in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	(c) Renamed:
	(i) Ensure any renamed street complies with Exhibit B, Section 3.1(a), of this Agreement;
	(ii) Coordinate the renaming of any street with the COUNTY;
	(iii) Inform the COUNTY the desired effective date of any renamed street;
	(iv) Provide the COUNTY documentation, including a layout or plat, of any renamed street within 10 business days following the PUBLIC AGENCY’s final approval; and
	(v) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated road centerlines in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	3.2. Layout:
	(a) Supply the COUNTY with a map or plat of any street which is:
	(i) Platted;
	(ii) Official recognized and named;
	(iii) Undergoing new construction; or
	(iv) Altered to change its positional location, including extended or shorted; and
	(b) Provide the COUNTY with documentation, including a layout or plat, of any street which is permanently closed, abandoned, discontinued, or vacated within ten (10) business days following the PUBLIC AGENCY’s final approval; and
	(c) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated road centerlines in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	3.3. Address Ranges:
	(a) Provide the COUNTY the address range for every named street segment, including:
	(i) Low and high address numbers;
	(ii) Address Parity (odd, even, both) for each side of the street (left, right); and
	(iii) Direction in which address numbers increase; and
	(b) Provide the COUNTY a map or plat which displays the address range of each named street segment.
	3.4. Functional Classifications:
	(a) Provide the COUNTY functional classification of each street; and
	(b) Notify the COUNTY when the functional classification of any street changes.
	3.5. Status
	(a) Provide written notification frame to the COUNTY of any street which is:
	(i) Approved; and
	(ii) Accepted.
	3.6. Traffic Regulations
	(a) Speed Limits:
	(i) Provide the COUNTY with official documentation of any approved or altered speed limit within 24 hours of approval; and
	(ii) Upon written request, supply the COUNTY detailed information on previously established speed limits.
	(b) Direction of Travel Flow:
	(i) Provide the COUNTY with official documentation of any street designated for one-way traffic within 24 hours of approval; and
	(ii) Upon written request, supply the COUNTY detailed information on streets previously designated for one-way traffic.
	4. Addresses
	In regards to address numbers PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:
	4.1. New:
	(a) Ensure each assigned address complies with and validates against the street name and address range information provided to the COUNTY under Exhibit B, Section 1, subsections 3.1(b) and 3.3(a), of this Agreement;
	(b) Notify the COUNTY in writing of each address assignment within 10 business days of assignment.  Include with each notice:
	(i) The full and complete address, including all appropriated address characteristic;
	(i) A map, or coordinates, with positional accuracy of the structure or designated site location within +/- 25 feet of its true location or intended designation; and
	(ii) The effective date of the assignment;
	(c) Coordinate all mass address assignments with the COUNTY; and
	(d) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	4.2. Reassigned/Corrected:
	(a) Ensure each reassigned or corrected address complies with and validates against the street name and address range information provided to the COUNTY under Exhibit B, Section 1, subsections 3.1(b) and 3.3(a), of this Agreement;
	(b) Notify the COUNTY in writing of each address change or correction within 10 business days of its reassignment.  Include with each notice:
	(ii) The full and complete former address, including all appropriated address characteristic;
	(iii) The full and complete new address, including all appropriated address characteristic;
	(i) The effective date of the assignment;
	(c) Coordinate all mass address changes with the COUNTY; and
	(d) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	4.3. Relocation:
	(a) Notify the COUNTY in writing when the spatial location of any addressed structure or site occurs. Include with each notice:
	(iv) The full and complete address, including all appropriated address characteristic;
	(i) A map, or coordinates, with positional accuracy of the structure or designated site’s new location within +/- 25 feet of its true location or intended designation; and
	(ii) The effective date of the change;
	(b) Coordinate all mass address relocations with the COUNTY; and
	(c) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	4.4. Cancellation:
	(a) Notify COUNTY in writing of any address assignment which subsequently cancelled, voided or otherwise deemed invalid for use.  The notice shall include:
	(v) The full and complete address, including all appropriated address characteristic;
	(i)  The effective date; and
	(b) Coordinate all mass address cancellations with the COUNTY; and
	(c) Optionally, provide the COUNTY a maintained and updated site/structure address points in GIS format, as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 2, of this Agreement.
	5. Subdivision
	In regards to subdivisions PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:
	5.1. Plats:
	(a) Ensure all street names which appear on the plat were preapproved in accordance with Exhibit A, Section 1, of this Agreement;
	(b) Provide COUNTY a copy of all plats within 10 business days of approval;
	(c) Notify COUNTY of all streets undergoing construction prior to a plat’s final approval; and
	(d) Furnish COUNTY a map or plat which prominently displayed street names and address numbers within 10 business of the finalization of address assignments.
	1. 9-1-1 call errors:
	1.1. Incorrect Automatic Location Identifier (ALI);
	1.2. Call Misroute; or
	1.3. No Record Found (NRF).
	2. Telephone Number (TN) Database errors:
	2.1. Incorrect ALI;
	2.2. Missing Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) record; or
	2.3. Incorrect MSAG record.
	3. Master Street Address Guide (MSAG) Database errors:
	3.1. Missing MSAG records;
	3.2. Incorrect MSAG records;
	4. 9-1-1 GIS database errors:
	4.1. Geometry, such as
	(a) Duplicate Features;
	(b) Feature Outside Provisioning Boundary;
	(c) Feature Gap or Overlap; or
	(d) Road Centerline (RCL) Disconnect;
	4.2. Attribute, such as:
	(a) Mismatch compared to another layer;
	(b) RCL Parity Issue;
	(c) Missing Critical Field Value;
	(d) Unmatched Site/Structure Address Point (SSAP) to ALI Record;
	(e) Unmatched RCL to MSAG Record;
	(f) Duplicate Globally Unique Identifications (GUIDs); or
	(g) Missing Routing Uniform Resource Identifier (URI).
	5. Address errors:
	5.1. Any address reported by a property owner, resident, member of the public, service provider, government entity, etc. for which no 9-1-1 address point exists.
	5.2. Any reported address which cannot be validated against a RCL or MSAG Record.
	When conducting GIS work related to this Agreement PUBLIC AGENCY agrees to:
	1. Maintenance
	Create and maintain current GIS data related to one or more 9-1-1 GIS data layers:
	(a) Site/Structure Address Points (SSAPs);
	(b) Road Centerlines (RCLs);
	(c) Municipal Boundaries;
	(d) PSAP Boundaries;
	(e) Emergency Service Zones (ESZ);
	(f) Law Emergency Service Boundary (ESB);
	(g) Fire ESB; and
	(h) Emergency Medical Service (EMS) ESB.
	2. Data Requirement
	Follow the GIS data requirements outlined the CAPCOG NG9-1-1 Transitional GIS Data Requirements, in accordance with Exhibit C, Attachment B, of this Agreement.
	3. Quality
	Perform quality assurance/quality control measure to ensure GIS data provided to the COUNTY is high quality.
	4. Format
	Provide GIS data to the COUNTY in ESRI file geodatabase or shapefile format.
	5. Coordinate System
	Submit GIS data to the COUNTY in a common projected coordinate system.
	6. Metadata
	Include metadata with all GIS data provided to the COUNTY that includes, at a minimum:
	(a) A description of the data (Summary and Description);
	(b) Definitions of the attributes and the attribute values;
	(c) Time period covered by the data;
	(d) Restrictions to access and/or use of the data;
	(e) Contact information; and
	(f) Keywords that enable users to search and find data.
	7. Timely Submittal
	Submit GIS data to the COUNTY by the 10th business day of each month.
	8. Non-geospatial Data and Information
	Continue to submit to the COUNTY all notification, information, and records that are essential for the maintenance of the 9-1-1 GIS database in its jurisdiction within COUNTY’s provisioning boundary as outlined in Exhibit B, Section 1, of this Agreement.
	911 Database ILA_Exhibit A-County Duties_2023.pdf
	Scope of Work Overview
	The goal of the COUNTY’s scope of work is to facilitate the exchange of information between itself and the PUBLIC AGENCY to help ensure the efficient and accurate response to emergency calls and text messages in the PUBLIC AGENCY’s jurisdiction within...



	City of Smithville ILA - Revised 7-31-2023 (002).pdf
	Items 15-17.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




